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SLOCUM DRAINAGE DISTRICT OF LAKE COUNTY’S BRIEF IN LIEU OF
HEARING

THIS COMES BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

(“Board”), by SlocumLakeDrainageDistrict ofLakeCounty’s(“District”) Third Party

NPDESPermitAppealfrom theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency’s(“IEPA”)

issuanceof a modificationto PermitNo. ILOO2O109, which Permitwasoriginally issued

on November6, 2000,andwasmadeeffectiveDecember1, 2000. Thereafter,theIEPA

approvedtherequestedmodificationsto thatPermitonDecember30, 2003 andAugust

23, 2004.ThePermithasanexpirationdateofNovember30, 2005’. ThelastNPDES

modificationrequestandissuanceis thesubjectofthis reviewbytheBoard.

‘IEPA Exhibit No. 285, Recordp. 002210thru 002250



I. DISTRICT JURISDICTION FOR REVIEW BY THIS BOARD:

TheDistrict hasestablishedtheirability to havetheNPDESPermitmodification

reviewedby theIllinois Pollution ControlBoardbecauseatthepublic hearingheldon September

9, 2003(aswell ascommentssubmittedin oppositionto theNPDESPermitduring thepublic

commentperiod),manyindividuals,representativesandresidentscommented,testified,and

submittedexhibits,prior to theDistrict’s thenrepresentative,Ed McGlade. Mostimportantly,at

theoutsetofthehearing,theHearingOfficer remarked,asfollows:

.And lastly, I would like to avoidunnecessaryrepetition,if possible. So, if anyone

beforeyou hasalreadypresentedtestimonythat is containedin yourwrittenor oral comments,

pleaseskip overthoseissueswhenyou testify. And remember,all writtencommentswhetheror

notyou saythemout loud tonightwill becomepartof theofficial hearingrecordandwill be

considered.”2

In addition,theHearingOfficerdefinedthepublic hearingasstrictly aninformational

hearing;advisedthat thehearingwasnot “a contestedhearing..”;nosworntestimonywastaken;

prohibitedspeakersfrom arguing,cross-examining,or engagingin aprolongeddialoguewith the

panel;andtheHearingOfficer alsolimited individualsto five minutesandrepresentativesof

groupsto tenminutes.3

TheDistrict maintainsthatany issuesraisedduring andafterMr. McGlade’s

testimonyareissuesthat shouldbeallowedby thisReviewbeforethis Board4.

2IEPA HearingTranscriptp. 7 thru9.

3IEPAHearingTranscriptp. 7

4IEPA HearingTranscriptp. 110thru 114.



Moreover,for thepurposesofthisReview,testimonyby anywitnessat thepublichearing

heldon September9, 2003, is repetitiveofthosethatwould havebeenespousedby theDistrict if

theDistrict’s representativewould havebeengiven theopportunity.5

Throughcommentsandtestimony,theDistrict hasraisedlegal andscientificissues

regardingdeficienciesin theNPDES permit modificationandtheIEPA’s NON-considerationof

thoserelevantlegal andscientificissues. Therefore,theDistrict hasdemonstratedtheir

jurisdictionalability to havethis Boarddeterminetheissuespresentedby theDistrict.

II. JURISDICTION:

SlocumLakeDrainageDistrict ofLakeCounty,Illinois is anIllinois DrainageDistrict

establishedpursuantto theIllinois DrainageCode.6 TheDistrict is aspecialpurpose,non-profit

entity thatwasoriginally establishedby theCircuit Court of LakeCountyin 1915,for which its

purposewasto providedrainageofagriculturalland. At present,theDistrict is responsiblefor

maintenanceof approximately17,900 linearfeetof ditch line. EventhoughtheIEPAstatedthat

“Lake CountyForestPreserveDistrict (LCFPD)owns2,600 lineal feetof FiddleCreekwhich

constitutesthenorthernboarder(sic) of the517-acreFoxRiver Preserve,...”thispropertyis

subjectto theDistrict’s rightsofway for drainagetiles, ditches,feedersandlaterals.7

In 1973,theIllinois legislatureimposeda statutoryduty upontheCommissionersof any

drainagedistrict to useall practicablemeansandmeasuresto protectsuchenvironmentalvalues

suchastrees,fish andwildlife habitats,andto avoiderosionandpollution ofthe land,wateror

5IEPA Recordat p. 000437

670 ILCS 605/1-1et seq.

7Exhibit “A” - Legal descriptionof LakeCountyForestPreserve’sacquiredproperty.



air.8

A waterofthe StateofIllinois asdefinedat Section3.56oftheIllinois Environmental

ProtectionAct (“Act”)9

“WATERS” meansall accumulationsof water,surfaceandunderground,natural,
andartificial, public andprivate, orpartsthereof,which arewholly orpartially
within, flow through,orborderuponthisState.

Section3.55 oftheAct,’°defines“waterpollution” asfollows:

“WATER POLLUTION” is suchalterationofthephysical,thermal,chemical,
biological or radioactivepropertiesofany watersoftheState,or suchdischargeofany
contaminantintoanywatersoftheState,aswill or is likely to createanuisanceor rendersuch
watersharmfulor detrimentalor injuriousto publichealth,safetyor welfare,or to domestic,
commercial,industrial,agricultural,recreational,or otherlegitimate uses,or to livestock,wild
animals,birds, fish, orotheraquaticlife.

Section3.06oftheAct, definesa “contaminant”is “any solid, liquid, orgaseousmatter,
anyodor,orany form ofenergy,from whateversource.”11

Section12(a) oftheAct, provides,in pertinentpartasfollows:

Nopersonshall:

a. Causeorthreatenor allow thedischargeofany contaminantsinto the
environmentin any Statesoasto causeor tendto causewaterpollution in Illinois,
eitheraloneor in combinationwith matterfrom othersources,or soasto
violateregulationsor standardsadoptedby thePollutionControlBoard
underthis Act.’2

870 ILCS 605/4-15.1

p415 ILCS 5/3.56(2000)

10415 ILCS 5/3.55(2000)

“415 ILCS 5/3.06(2000)

12415 ILCS 5/12(a)(2000)



Section304.120(c)ofthis Board’sWaterPollution Regulations’3providesasfollows:

Exceptasprovidedin Section306.103,all effluentscontainingdeoxygenating
wastesshallmeetthefollowing standards:

(c) No effluentwhosedilution ratio is lessthanfive to one
Shallexceed10 mg/i of BOD or 12 mg/l of suspendedsolids

Section12(f) of theAct’4, in pertinentpart, providesasfollows:

No personshall:
f. Cause,threatenorallow thedischargeofany contaminantinto thewaters
of theState,asdefinedherein,includingbutno limited to, watersto any sewage
works,or into anywell or from anypointsourcewithin the State,withoutan
NPDESpermit for point sourcedischargesissuedby theAgencyunder
Section39(b)ofthis Act, or in violationof any termor conditionimposedby such
permit,or in violation ofanyNPDESpermit filing requirementestablishedunder
Section39(b),or in violation of anyregulationsadoptedby theBoardorofany
Orderadoptedby theBoardwith respectto theNPDESprogram.

Section309.102(a)oftheBoardWaterPollutionRegulations’5,titled,NPDES Permit

Required,providesasfollows:

a. Exceptasin compliancewith theprovisionsofthe Act, Boardregulations,and
theCleanWaterAct, andtheprovisionsandconditionsoftheNPDESpermit
issuedto the discharger,thedischargeof any contaminantorpollutantby any
personinto thewatersof theStatefrom apointsourceor into awell shallbe
unlawful.

Section304.141(a)oftheBoardWaterPollution Regulation’6,providesasfollows:

No personto whom anNPDESpermithasbeenissuedmaydischargeany
contaminantin his effluentin excessofthestandardsandlimitations for that
contaminantwhich aresetforth in his permit.

In addition,Section309.146(a)(1-4)of theBoardWaterPollution Regulations,titled

1335 Ill.Adm.Code304.120(c),titled DeoxygenatingWastes

‘~415ILCS 5/12(f) (2000)

1535 Ill.Adm.Code 309.102(a),titled NPDESPermitRequired

1635 Ill.Adm.Code 304.141(a),titled NPDESEffluent Standards



Authority to EstablishRecording,Reporting,MonitoringandSamplingRequirements,’7provides

asfollows:

a. TheAgencyshallrequireeveryholderofanNPDES Permit,asa condition
of theNPDESPermit issuedto theholder,to:

1. Establish,maintainandretainrecords;
2. Make reports;
3. Install, calibrate,useandmaintainmonitoring

equipmentormethods(includingwhere
appropriatebiological monitoringmethods);

4. Takesamplesofeffluents(in accordancewith
suchmethods,at suchlocations,at such
intervals,andin suchamannerasmaybe
prescribed).

Forpurposesofthis document,wehaveadoptedtheacronymsasstatedin theIEPA

Recordatpage002249and001209,andthosedefinitionssetforth at IEPARecordp. 001729

and001730.

Theaboveconstitutesjurisdictional(not all inclusive)basesfor this Boardto regulatethe

holderofaNPDESpermit,andtheadministrativeagencyestablishedandchargedwith theduty

of enforcingtheAct.

III. BACKGROUND OF WASTEWATER STREAM:

TheWaucondaWastewaterTreatmentPlant(“WWTP”) originallydischargedits effluent

into theBangsLakeDrain Creek,which flows into SlocumLake,exits throughthe SlocumLake

Drain into theDistrict’s Ditchwhich ultimatelyjoinstheFoxRiver.

In 1977,thisBoardgrantedavarianceto theVillage of Waucondafrom thephosphorus

1735 I11.Adm.Code309.146(a)(1-4)



standardin orderfor Wauconda’sWWTPto havetime to resolvethephosphorusproblem.’8

It wasMs. MorenooftheIEPA that stated:

“It wasthePollution ControlBoardbackin the ‘80’s whoorderedtheplant to changeits
pointofdischarge.And thatwason thebasisofa seriesof whatwe call variances,which
therewasaphosphorouslimit in effect. And theyand alot ofotherpeopleweren’tbeing
ableto meetthephosphorouslimit. SotheBoardsaid,Okay,underthe Act wecangive
you a varianceofamaximumof five yearsto give you timeto figure outwhatyou are
goingto do. As it turnedout, whattheyendedup havingto do wasto movethe
discharge.Soit wasthe PollutionControlBoardthatwasin, I meanthatwas—It
basicallyis theequivalentof acourtorder. And I would just like to makethatclear
becauseI think theremayhavebeensome,you know,just somecuriosity asto howit was
that that cameabout. We didn’t do it, theBoarddid it basically.”9

Thenin 1983,theBoardterminatedWauconda’svariance,whereupontheWWTP

dischargewasmoved,by theBoard’sorder,awayfrom SlocumLaketo its presentlocationin

FiddleCreek,which flows into theDistrict’s ditch andthereafterultimately flows into theFox

RiverthroughtheDistrict’s ditch.2°

At thePublicHearingheldon September9, 2003,theIEPA by Mrs. Morenostated,

“...that FiddleCreekhaspreviouslybeendesignatedin Wauconda’sNPDES Permitandother

IEPA documentsas ‘..anunnamedtributaryto theFox River’ andthatthe FoxRiver is an

IMPAIRED WATERWAY.” (Emphasisadded).2’ TheFox River is listed on the303(d)list

with FiddleCreekcoming into thetail portionof DT-22.22 Thestreamis ratedasa “C” stream

‘8IEPA Recordatp. 002213

‘9IEPA HearingTranscriptatp. 15-16
20IEPA Recordatp. 002213

21IEPA Recordatp. 000305thru 000310,002213

22IEPA Recordatp. 001979



on theBSC.23

Thedischargepointhasbeenthesamesince1983 into FiddleCreekthroughtheDistrict’s

ditch to theFox River.24

Becauseoftheplansfor expansionofthe WWTP in Wauconda,a modificationofPermit

No. ILOO2O 109wasagainrequestedandapprovedby theJEPAon August23, 2004.25 The

contentsof thatPermitmodificationis thesubjectof this Reviewby this Board.

IV. THE IEPA’S ANTI-DEGRADATION ANALYSIS FAILED TO COMPLY WITH
THE ANTI-DEGRADATION RULES26

TheIEPA Anti-degradationAssessmentdatedFebruary20,2003, andthesubsequent

JEPAAnti-degradationAssessmentdatedApril 14, 2003 is insufficientanddoesnotcomply

with therelevantRules.27 Both oftheIEPA’s Anti-degradationAssessmentswereprepared

by Jeff Hutton of the IEPA.28

First, theJEPAanti-degradationassessmentdatedApril 14, 2003 only refersto thewater

quality datafrom a September15, 1993 facility streamsurveyconductedby theIEPA, which

found“fair environmentalconditionsin WaucondaCreekwith minor impactfrom theWauconda

23IEPA Recordatp. 001979

24IEPA Recordatp. 002271thru 002285andp. 002213; Hearing Transcript p. 15-16

25IE~pARecord atp. 002211

2635 Ill.Adm.Code 302.105(A)

27IEPA Recordatp. 001599thru 001602and. 000995thru 000997

28IEPA Record at p. 001599 thru 001602 and 000995 thru 000997



sewagetreatmentplantdischarge.”29Thesurveyidentifiedelevatedlevelsof conductivity,

nitrateplus nitrite, phosphorus,sodium,potassium,boron,strontiumandoil downstreamof the

Waucondaoutfall. Despitethesefindings by theIEPA, noneofthesecontaminantswere

evaluatedby the IEPAanti-degradationassessmentin 2003.~°EventheIEPA’s Anti-

degradationAssessmentmaintainsthat .. . .“The stream[WaucondaCreek] will nonetheless

experiencean increase,over time,in loadingdueto the increasein theeffluentdischarge.”3’

Therelevantdatabasisdatefor anti-degradationanalysis,in this instance,shouldbeNovember

28, 1975,32whichwasdemonstratedby theBaxter& Woodman,Inc. reportdatedMarch23,

1983.

Furthermore,theJEPAandtheVillage ofWaucondaarerequiredto follow, aswell, the

federalanti-degradationregulations.

“Wherethequalityof thewatersexceedlevelsnecessaryto supportpropagation
offish, shellfish,andwild-life andrecreationin andonthewater,thatquality
shallbemaintainedandprotectedunlessthe Statefinds...thatallowing lower
waterquality is necessaryto accommodateimportanteconomicor social
developmentin theareain whichthewatersarelocated. In allowing such
degradationor lower waterquality, theStateshallassurewater quality
adequateto protect existingusesfully. Further, theStateshall assurethat
there shall be achievedthe higheststatutory and regulatory requirements for
all newand existing point sourcesand all costeffectiveand reasonablebest
managementpracticesfor nonpoint source control.”33 (Emphasisadded).

29IEPARecordatp. 000995

30IEPA Recordatp. 000995thru001001

3’IEPA Recordatp. 000995
32IEPA Recordatp.

~~40CFR 131.12,Anti-degradationPolicy



Section105(A) oftheIllinois AdministrativeCode containtheAnti-degradationRules

requiredto be followedby theIEPA:

Thepurposeofthis Sectionis to protectexistingusesofall watersof theStateof
Illinois, maintainthequality of waterswith qualitythat is betterthanwaterquality
standards,andpreventunnecessarydeteriorationofwatersof theState.

(a) ExistingUses

1. An actionthatwould resultin thedeteriorationofthe existingaquatic
community,suchasashift from acommunityofpredominantlypollutant-
sensitivespeciesto pollutant-tolerantspeciesor a lossof speciesdiversity;

2. An actionthatwould resultin a lossofaresidentor indigenousspecies
whosepresenceis necessaryto sustaincommercialorrecreational
activities;or

3. An actionthatwouldprecludecontinueduseofa surfacewaterbody or
waterbodysegmentfor apublic watersupplyor for recreationalor
commercialfishing, swimming,paddlingor boating.

In addition,Section302.105(f)requirestheIEPA to complywith certainproceduresin

conductingan anti-degradationassessment,asfollows:

(f) In conductingananti-degradationassessmentpursuantto this Section,the
Agencymustcomplywith thefollowing procedures:

1. A permitapplicationfor any proposedincreasein pollutantloading that
necessitatestheissuanceof a . .. .modifiedNPDESpermit .. . .mustinclude,to the
extentnecessaryfor theAgencyto determinethatthepermit applicationmeetsthe
requirementsofthis Section,thefollowing information:

A. Identificationandcharacterizationofthewaterbodyaffectedby the
proposed load increase or proposed activity and the existing water body’s
uses. Characterization must address physical, biologicaland chemical
conditionsofthewaterbody.

B. Identificationandquantificationof theproposedloadincreasesfor the
applicableparametersandofthepotentialimpactsoftheproposedactivity
ontheaffectedwaters.

C. Thepurposeandanticipatedbenefitsof theproposedactivity. Such
benefitsmayinclude:



i. Providingacentralizedwastewatercollectionandtreatment
systemfor apreviouslyunseweredcommunity;
ii. Expansionto provideservicefor anticipatedresidentialor
industrialgrowthconsistentwith a community’slongrangeurban
planning;
iii. Addition ofanewproductline or productionincreaseor
modificationatanindustrialfacility; or
iv. An increaseor theretentionof currentemploymentlevelsata
facility.

D. Assessmentsofalternativesto proposedincreasesin pollutantloading
or activitiessubjectto Agencycertificationpursuantto Section401 ofthe
CWA that resultin lessof a loadincrease,no loadincreaseorminimal
environmentaldegradation.Suchalternativesmayinclude:

i. Additional treatmentlevels,includingno dischargealternatives;
ii. Dischargeofwasteto alternatelocations,includingpublicly-
ownedtreatmentworks andstreamswith greaterassimilative
capacity;or
iii. Manufacturingpracticesthatincorporatepollutionprevention
techniques

2. The Agency must complete anAnti-degradationassessmentin accordancewith
the provisions of this Section on a case-by-case basis.

A. The Agency must consider the criteria stated in Section 302.1 05(c)(2),
which includes the requirementthat “...All existing uses will be fully
protected.”35 Ill.Adm. Code302.105(c)(2)(B)(ii).34

A. WATER QUALITY

Thewaterquality from the outfall throughouttheentireFiddleCreekDitch to theFox

Riverwasnot evaluatedon acurrentbasisby theIEPA, andthemanyengineerswho have

reviewedtheconclusionsoftheIEPAdisagreewith thosefindingsand conclusionswithout

reservation. Forinstance,theLakeCountyForestPreserveDistrict retainedtheservicesofV3

consultantsandBaetisEnvironmentalServices,Inc. regardingtheWaucondaWastewater

TreatmentPlantExpansion.35Theseengineersbasedtheirfindings onreportsanddataoutlined

3435 Ill.Adm.Code 302.105(f)

35IEPARecordatp. 000314thru 000345



beginning on Page 000335 of the IEPA Record. Upon field data obtained as well, these

engineers published their professional opinion in a report dated September 5, 2003.36

The findings of the Lake CountyForestPreserve’sreport,afterassessingthepotential

impacts of the proposed expansion and the modification to the existing permit, state that the

“..effluent is causing downstream oxygen deficits,andthattheproposedDO limits for the

effluent will not likely be met.”37 These Forest Preserve engineers further state that

“The proposed effluentdissolvedoxygen(DO) limit of6 mg/L is not currently being met
at the outfall ordownstream...EarlymorningDO wasmeasuredaslow as 3.3 mg/L in
Fiddle Creek. Weattribute these violations of water quality standards to the Village’s
wastelo ads. TheIEPA’ s Anti-degradation Assessment did not properly characterizethe
affected water body, and .. .we . . .requestthattheIEPAreviewthesedata,andinformation
on subsequentsectionsof this reportandto reconsiderthe Anti-degradationAssessment.
Additional bio-chemicaloxygendemand(BOD) wasteloadswill degradeDO resourcesin
thecreekbeyondexistingconditionsandtheVillage will notbe in compliancewith
SpecialCondition5 oftheModified NPDESPermit.”38

In addition,theForestPreserveengineerswent on to elaborateon theBiological Oxygen

Demand(BOD), statingthat,

“The FiddleCreekchannelat RobertsRoadhasamaintainedlawn-typeriparian
zoneandlacksshadeor canopy. Becauseit is exposedto full sunlight,
photosyntheticprocessessupersaturatethewaterwith oxygen. At mid-dayon
August 14, 2003,a sunnyday,wemeasuredDO to be 11.86mg/L, or 144%of
saturation.OnAugust22, 2003,at 9:24AM, DO atthis samelocationwas
measuredto be5.06 mg/L, oronly 60%saturation.We madeDO measurements
againat 5:20 AM onAugust28, 2003 andfound3.34mg/L (37%saturation).
Theselargeswingsin DO concentration,particularlythenadirs(or low points),
stresstheaquaticecosystem.We attributetheDO swingsto highnutrient
wasteloadsin theWaucondaeffluent. Thenutrientsfeedalgaeandmacrophytes,
whichrespireandconsumeoxygenatnight, andproduceoxygenduring daytime.
Thereareparalleldiel swingsin dissolvedcarbondioxide andpH.

36IEPARecordatp. 000314 thru 000345

37IEPARecordatp.000333
38IEPA Record at p. 000321



ThedraftModified NPDESPermitapplicationprojectsBOD andnutrient
wasteloads to increase with plant expansion. Given the water quality in the
system under the existing wasteloads,wedisagreewith the IEPA that the
higher wasteloadswill not degradeFiddle Creek. Preliminary analysis of
wasteloadassimilationin FiddleCreekconfirms this.”(EmhasisAdded)39

“In our report, we document existing violations of DOstandards in Fiddle Creek
and the likelihood of futureviolationsaswell.”4°

“...all potential environmental effects of the project have not been evaluated. In
particular, the effects on the wetland plant community within the fen and within the
riparian areas along Fiddle Creek areunknown. The potential impacts of this
increaseddischargeon groundwaterhavenot beeninvestigated.We areconcerned
aboutthe integrity ofthevegetationcommunity,particularwithin thefen. The
Village ofWaucondashould prepare an ecologicalrisk assessmentto evaluate
theeffectsof increasedflows, groundwater changes,and higher nutrient
wasteloadson thewetland communities....beforea modified NPDES permit is
issued by IEPA.”(Emphasis added)4’

TheIEPA’s anti-degradationassessmentis flawedwhenit concludes that the dissolved

oxygen standards will not be violated by this discharge. As the monitoringdoneby Lake

BarringtonlCuba Township has demonstrated, dissolved oxygen violations routinely occur due to

the Wauconda discharge.42

The final comment by the Forest Preserve engineers was that they requested the IEPA to

review the data and reconsiderits conclusionsin theAnti-degradationAssessment.43 The District

concurs.

Yet, anotherenvironmentalengineerretainedby theVillage ofLakeBarringtonandCuba

39IEPARecordatp. 000333

40IEPARecordatp. 000335

41IEPARecordatp. 000335

42IEPA Recordatp. 000571

43IEPA Recordatp. 000335



Township,JamesE. Huff, advisedthat

“The February20, 2003IEPAmemorandumregardinganti-degradationanalysis
has serious deficiencies and is flawed in its conclusions; and. . .privatewaterqualitysamplingof
FiddleCreekidentifiedit asanimpairedwaterwaybecauseofelevatedlevelsof nutrientsand
pathogens,anddepressedlevelsofdissolvedoxygen....“~

FindingthesameresultsastheForestPreserveengineers,Huff& Huff, engineersretained

by LakeBarringtonandCubaTownship,statetheresultsoftheirinvestigationofFiddleCreek,

whereinthey

“...found dissolvedoxygen(D.O.)Levelsbelow5.0 mg/L from theWaucondaoutfall and

alongtheentire FiddleCreek.Neartheoutfall, total phosphorusaveraged3.9 mg/L and

nitrateswere 18.0 mg/L in theCreek. TheAgencyin 1993,foundelevatednitrateplus

nitrite,phosphorus,strontium,andoil downstreamoftheWaucondaoutfall, consistent

with the2003results....in addition,theIDNR collectedfish from FiddleCreekat Roberts

Roadin September1997.TheStarheadtopminnowwascollectedatthis samplinglocation

by the IDNR. This fish species will be listed as a threatened species this summer... .The

presenceof athreatenedspeciesincreasestheimportanceof identifyingthis streamas

“impaired.”45

TheHuff & Huff letterconcludedby statingthatwith thecurrentlevelsofD.O.,

phosphorus,andnitrates,thesepropertiesaloneweresufficientto list FiddleCreekas“impaired”

andshouldbe on the Agency’s303(d)list.46

It shouldbenotedthat aRecordingForm for theCitizenMonitoring Biotic Indextakenon

44IEPARecordatp. 000460

45IEPA Recordatp. 002106

46JEPARecordatp. 002106to 002107



September15, 1993 for FiddleCreekattheSiteI.D. asCl reflectedan IndexScoreof

1.67whentheHealthof theStreamis shownas“Poor” whenthescoreis between1.0 and

~

TheIEPA’s anti-degradationassessmentutilized waterquality samplestakenin 1993 -

overten(10) yearsold. Thestatementin that assessmentthat “...ammoniaanddissolvedoxygen

standardswould notbeexceeded...”wasmadeon tenyear-oldinformation. WhentheIEPA, in

their2003 anti-degradationassessmentdiscussesthephosphorusandtotalnitrogenissues,the

analysiswasdeferredbecausethestatestandardswereto be adoptedin thefuture. This JEPA

conductdoesnot comply with therequirementsof Section3 02.105.

Coincidentally,theenvironmentalengineerfor theIllinois AttorneyGeneral’soffice

articulatedthesameconcernregardingtheten-year-olddatawhenin aletterdatedOctober30,

2003,stated

“...Wauconda’s Anti-degradationAssessmentindicatedthat thereceivingstreamhasa

7QlO flow of 0 cfsandis classifiedasa ‘GeneralUse’ water. However,this evaluation

wasbasedon a 1993streamsurvey.We do notbelievethatit is advisableorappropriateto

relyon datageneratedtenyearsago.The surrounding area has experienceda

significant growth in residential developmentsince1993 (that is the reasonfor the

proposedplant expansion). The Anti-Degradation Assessmentneedsto evaluate

future conditions,and Waucondaand theIEPA) should be required to prepare a

new stream survey in order to satisfy the requirementsof 35 Il1.Adm. Code302.105.48

(Emphasisadded).

47IEPA Recordatp. 001000
48IEPA Recordatp. 1031 thru 1034.



Clearly, the phosphorus level concern was the precise reason that this Board changed the

locationofthewastewaterfrom theWaucondaplantto theFiddleCreek. Withoutrecent

supportingdata,the2003IEPA anti-degradationassessmentsconcludethatthe increased

discharge“..will resultin improvedeffluent quality.” Certainly,this Boardshouldscrutinize

suchan insufficientanalysiswhich clearly fails to meettherule requirements.Therefore,this

Boardshouldrequirethe IEPA to conductadditionalevaluationsofrecentdatagatheredin order

to complywith theanti-degradationRules.

B. A PRE-TREATMENT PROGRAM FOR WAUCONDA WWTP

Section 301.350 provides for the definition of “Pretreatment Works” as follows:

“PretreatmentWorks” meansatreatmentworksdesignedandintendedfor the

treatmentofwastewaterfrom an indirectdischargeor industrial userasdefinedin

40 CFR403, beforeintroductioninto a sewersystemtributaryto a publicly owned

orpublicly regulatedtreatmentworks.49

TheOffice oftheAttorneyGeneralin a letterdatedOctober30, 2003,statedthat

“...althoughWaucondacurrentlyoperatesunderadisinfectionexemption,it hasindicatedthat it

will installanultravioletdisinfectionsystemanddisinfectwastewatereffluentuponstartupofthe

newplant.”5°

Thatsameletterby theOffice oftheAttorneyGeneralto the HearingOfficer oftheIEPA

statedthat“...On September19, 2000,Waucondaadoptedanordinanceestablishinga

pretreatmentProgram. It hascompleteda surveyandcompiledalist ofthenon-residentialusers

in theVillage. However,it appearsthatWaucondahasnot implementedand enforcedthe

49IEPA Recordatp. 001010

50IEPA Recordatp. 001033



Program. Theproposedmodificationsto theNPDESpermit shouldincludeprovisionsfor

Waucondato providemonthlyreportsto theAgency,demonstratingits compliancewith its

PretreatmentProgram. Recenteventsatthetreatmentplant,includinga spill fromtheplant

digester,havedemonstratedanurgentneedto implementan approvedPretreatmentProgram

consistentwith 35 Ill.Adm.CodePart3l0.”~’

In amemorandumdatedSeptember3, 2003,from IEPA Chris Kallis to LisaMoreno,Mr.

Kallis states,“. . .regardingtheSuperfundsite(WaucondaSandandGravel)...this issuewill and

alreadyhasexpandedinto differentissues.Oneis that theexpiredpermitrequiredthatWauconda

initiateapretreatmentprogram. This is noton thenewpermit becauseUSEPAhasstatedin

correspondencethat Waucondashouldnotbe requiredto administeronedespitehavingat least

two categoricalindustries....ThereportsshowthatWaucondaTaskGroupconstantlyviolatesthe

villageordinancefor Boronandtotal dissolvedsolids. Howeveraslong astheyarenoton the

pretreatmentprogram,theAgencyhasno legal authorityto forceWaucondato enforceits

ordinance(self-imposedpretreatmentprogramby Wauconda).. . .theannualreportdoesconfirmthe

presenceof someorganiccompoundsandpoly aromatichydrocarbons.Doweknow if this

affectingtheplator causingpassthrough?No, becausetheyarenot on thepretreatmentprogram.

Thustheyarenot requiredto sampleandanalyzefor thesecompoundsin their influent, effluent

and sludge.”52

However,with respectto arecentandlastminuteresearchinvestigation,yourPetitioner

hasdiscoveredthattheIllinois AttorneyGeneral’soffice filed aComplaintagainsttheVillage of

WaucondaonAugust17,2004, relatingto aviolationoftheBoard’sRegulations,i.e.,

5’IEPA Recordat p. 001033

52IEpA Record at p. 001766



1. 415 ILCS 5/12(a)(2002);

2. 415 ILCS 5/12(d)(2002)

3. 35 I1l.Adm. Code 302.203

4. 35 Ill.Am. Code304.104and304.106~~

5. 415 ILCS 5/12(f)(2002)and NPDESPermit No. 1L0020 109.

PLEASENOTEthatthis filing occurredonly daysprior to theapprovalby theJEPAof the

modifiedpermitfor theVillage ofWauconda.Thecomplaintinvolved aviolation ofthepermit

which occurredon September24, 2003.TheConsentOrder,enteredon December10,2004,

mandatesthat the Village of Wauconda must implement and enforce the pretreatment program in

accordance with the Village ordinance 2000-0-31, adopted by the Village on September 19, 2000.

The same ordinance that was not being implemented or enforced by the Village previously.

NOW, asof December10, 2004, theVillage ofWaucondais courtorderedto legally implement

its PretreatmentProgram.Any permitsissuedby theVillage ofWaucondato industrialusers

shall, ataminimum,includetheelementslisted in 40 CFR403.8(f)(1)(iii). Furthermore,the

Village ofWaucondais requiredto file anannualreportdescribingtheyear’sprogramactivities.

Suchareportmustconformto theIllinois EPA’sPOTWPretreatmentReportPackage.The

Village ofWaucondais courtorderedto maintainall pretreatmentdataandrecordsfor a

minimumof three(3) years. However,whathappensafterthe“minimum ofthree(3) years?”

Furthermore,theVillage ofWaucondais orderedto monitor its influent, effluent andsludgeon an

annualbasisfor 24 differentparameters.In addition,within six (6) monthsoftheentrydate

(12/10/04)oftheConsentOrder,theVillage of Waucondais orderedto conductan analysisof

110 organicpriority pollutantsidentifiedin 40 CFR 122AppendixD. TableII, asamended.This

53Exhibit “B” - ConsentOrderentered12/10/2004- LakeCty. CaseNo. 04CH1206



monitoringshall bedoneannually. However,is themonitoringof theseindiceson an annual

basisenoughin orderto protectthereceivingdownstreamwatersaswell asthe overall

watershed?

Certainly,onceagainpleasenote,theIEPA hadknowledgeandknewofthefiling of this

complaintprior to theAugust
23

id permit approvalannouncement.

C. THE RECEIVING WATER.

TheSeptember5, 2003,LakeCountyForestPreserveDistrict study wasconductedby

engineersretainedby theLakeCountyForestPreserveDistrict54 with respectto the Wauconda

WastewaterTreatmentPlantExpansion.Thefindingsof thatreportwereasfollows:55

“1. Basedon ourfindings regardingwaterqualitywithin FiddleCreek,webelieve

that theVillage ofWaucondashouldimprovetheirwastewatertreatmentfacility in

orderto complywith thewaterquality standardsalreadyrequiredby theexisting

NPDESpermit. This warrantsactionregardlessoftheModified NPDES Permit

beingissuedby IEPA.

2. WeunderstandthattheVillage of Waucondahasrecentlywithdrawnits request

for a renewedwaiverof effluentdisinfection. We requestthatthe IEPAconsider

removingthis waiver from theexistingNPDESPermit, in theeventthatthe

Modified NPDESPermit is not issued.

3. TheModified NPDES PermitprojectsBOD andnutrientwasteloadsto increase

with plant expansion.Giventhepoorwaterquality in thesuystemunderthe

existingwasteloads,wedisagreewith theIEPA thatthehigherwasteloadswill not

54IEPARecordatp. 000314thru000345

55IEPARecordatp. 000335



furtherdegradeFiddleCreek. In ourreport,wedocumentexisit violationsofDO

standardsin FiddleCreekandtheoikelihoodof futureviolationsaswell...

4. If theIEPAwereto issueaModified NPDESPermit for increasedeffluent

discharge,we recommendthat theIEPA addnutrient(Phosphorusandnitrogen)

monitoringin theMoidified Pemit....”

Moreover,theOffice oftheAttorneyGeneralin a letterdatedOctober30, 2003,stated

that “...theproposedincreasein flow to FiddleCreekfrom 1.4 million gallsper day to 7.93

million gallonsper day is significant. It stated,“[w]e do notbelievethatWaucondahas

adequatelydemonstratedthatthereceivingwatershavesufficienthydrauliccapacityto acceptthis

increasedflow without contributingto flood downstreamsegmentsduringwetweatherflows.

TheVillage needsto considerthepossibilitythat, undertheseconditions,flood watersmay

becomecontaminatedwith inadequatelytreatedwastewater”~6

Their lettergoeson to state“...Waucondashouldprovideappropriatedocumentationsuch

asFederalEmergencyManagementAdministration(FEMA) flood mapsidentifyingtheflood

plain andflood proneareas. Waucondashouldalsoconductarisk assessmentto determinethe

potentialrisk to public healthunderwet weatherconditions.Becausedownstreamwetlandswould

be affectedby a wet-weatherflow increase,theVillage shouldincludeU.S. Army Corpsof

Engineersor LakeCountyAdvanceIdentificationmapsto delineatesensitivewetlandareas.”57

TheNortheasternIllinois PlanningCommission,in their reportdatedJuly 2, 2002,with

respectto theirWaterQuality Review,statedthat“...the Staffwould recommendthat adetailed

studyof theimpactofthe increasedflow on thereceivingstreambe conductedbeforeissuinga

56IEPARecordatp. 001031thru 001032

57IEPARecordatp. 001031thru 001032



permit for therequesteddischarge.”58

In August,2002,MarciaT. Willhite “... deferredactionon theVillage’s requestto amend

the WQMPto reflect the expansion of Wauconda’s wastewater treatment plant from 1.4 mgdto

2.4 mgd. Thereceivingstreamfor thedischargeassociatedwith theproposedwastewater

treatment plant does not appear to be included on the Illinois EPA’s Clean Water Action Section

303(d)list atthis time. However,thepoint ofdischargemustbe re-evaluatedduringthe

preparationof engineeringreport(s)andpermit application(s)to determinepossiblerelevant

limitations uponthetreatmentplant’ssize,design,andlocation.”59

In amemorandumto JamesCowlesandBlameKinsley from Al Keller on September15,

2003,Mr. Keller admonishedBlameKinsleyby stating,...“we mayneedto makesurethese

permitsundergomorescrutiny,with actualfinishedwater supplydataandeffluentdataform

compliancewith WaterQuality Standards.”6°

It shouldbe notedthat a letterdatedMay 24, 2004, sentto BruceYurdin, Managerof the

WatershedManagementSectionoftheIEPA from JamesE. Huff, engineerfortheVillage of

LakeBarringtonand CubaTownship,requestedthatFiddle Creekin LakeCountybe addedthe

Illinois List of ImpairedWaterwaysi.e., the303(d)list.6’ The datawascollectedin August2003

by Huff& Huff, in accordancewith 40 CFR 130.7(b)(5),andtheQuality AssuranceProjectPlans

werefollowed andwasappropriatefortheIEPA to considerthecollecteddatain their303(d)

listing. Theinvestigationconductedin August2003 founddissolvedoxygenlevelsbelow 5.0

58IEPA Recordatp. 1583

59IEPA Recordatp.001591;JEPAExhibit 96

60IEPA Recordatp. 001769

61IPEA Recordatp. 002106thru 002139



mg/L from theWaucondaoutfall andalongtheentireFiddleCreek,aswell aslevelsof

phosphorus at 3.9 mg/L and nitrates at 18.0 mg/L levels. The stream also has a threatened species

i.e., the Starhead topminnow, which elevates the importance of identifying the stream as

“impaired”.

It is apparentthat theanti-degradationassessmentsconductedby the IEPA were

inadequateandcompletelyinconsistentwith thefindings andconclusionsofotherprofessionals

investigatingthecurrentconditionsoftheDistrict’s ditch, i.e.,FiddleCreek. Giventhedata

reviewed and analyzed from more current sources than used by the IEPA allows this Board to

requiretheIEPA to re-investigatetheirassessmentaccordingto thestatutoryandfederally

mandatedrequirements,andto requiretheIEPA to utilize morecurrentcollecteddataprior to

allowing theissuanceof themodifiedNPDESPermit to theVillage of Wauconda.

V. THE IEPA’S DISREGARD FOR THE PRIOR PERMIT VIOLATIONS BY THE
VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA

TheIEPA hasknowledgeandhasknownofthemanyviolationsofthecurrentNPDES

Permitby theVillage ofWauconda.Yet, theIEPA apparentlythoseviolationswerenot

significantenoughwhile consideringthe issuanceof amodificationoftheexistingPermit for an

increasein wasteloadto thewatershed.If asmanyviolationsoccurredat a lower level of waste

streamloading,would it not beanappropriateconsiderationto determinehowtheincreased

loadingofamodifiedpermitwould bemonitoredin orderto lowersignificantlythepossibility of

futureviolations ofananticipatedmodifiedpermit? Apparentlynot, sincetheIEPAhas

repeatedlystatedin this proceedingthattheprior violationswerenot aconsiderationin the

processofmaking theirdecisionto issuethemodifiedNPDESPermit.



An IEPA attorneyat thepublic informationhearingon September9, 2003, stated62

“Now yes,it is truethat throughthe ‘90’s, it (sic Wauconda)hadalot of problems.
No questionsaboutthat. But it doesn’thavethosesameproblemsanymore.
Whathappenedbasicallyis that in 2000, 1999and2000,wehadtheAttorney
General’soffice file suit againsttheVillage to forcethemto takecareofsomeof
theseproblems.”

OnJune28, 1999,theAttorneyGeneraloftheStateofIllinois filed acomplaintfor

injunctionandotherrelief againsttheVillage of Waucondafor violationswhich occurredon

May 20, 1996,andFebruary20 and21, 1997,whenWaucondaalloweduntreatedrawsewageto

bepumpedfrom six differentlocationstotalingapproximately1,530,390gallonsinto BangsLake

Creekwhich contained28.4 mg/L of totalsuspendedsolids. A consentorderwasentered

December13, 2000betweentheIllinois AttorneyGeneralandtheVillage ofWauconda,which

states “...Defendant shall ceaseand desistfrom future violations of theAct and Board

regulations, ...nothing in this ConsentOrder shall be construedasa waiver by Plaintiff of

the right to redress future or heretoforeundisclosedviolation or obtain penaltieswith

respectthereto.”63 (Emphasisadded). TheComplaintin thatproceedingdetailedviolations of

thecurrentNPDESPermitconditions.64

NotwithstandingtheConsentOrderdirective,therecordsavailablethroughtheUSEPA’s

PermitComplianceSystem(PCS)databasereflectedthat theeffluent compliancerecordsfor the

Village ofWauconda’sdischargefor theperiod,April 2001 to May2003, includedthefollowing

recordedviolations:65

62HearingTranscriptat p. 18-19.

63JEPARecordatp. 002271thru 002285

64Exhibit“C” attachedheretoandmadeaparthereof.
65IEPARecordatp. 000319



1. September,2001 - Copperin dischargeexceededpermitlimitation
2. November,2001 - Copperin dischargeexceededpermitlimitation
3. June,2002 - Totalammonianitrogenin the dischargeexceededthepermit
4. February,2003 - Copperin dischargeexceededpermitlimitation

In 1997,theIEPA statedthattheresultsof a six-monthmonitoringoftheWWTP effluent

exceededwaterquality standardsfor Copperand Silver, andrecommendedpermit limits

(1L0020109)be:66

Copper:
Daily Maximum .05 mg/L
30 DayAverage.03 mg/L

Silver:
Daily Maximum .005 mg/L

Yet, in 2001 and2003,therecontinuedto beviolations oftheCopperpermit limits. The

memorandumalsoconcludedthat“..no mixing is availablein thisreceivingstream.”67

Again, onAugust23, 29t~~and
30

th 2003,theWaucondaWWTP hadfoamleakingout of

thewestaerobicdigester,runningdownhill surroundingacontrolbuildingandenteringastorm

sewertributary to theBangsLakeDrain, which areviolationsofthepermit requirements.68

A memorandumdatedOctober6, 2003from Chris Kallis oftheJEPA to RogerCallaway

regardingtheAugust23, 2003violation, statedthat

“The WaucondaWastewaterTreatmentPlanhasbeenshownto be in violation of

Section12 (a) and(d) oftheIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct, 35

IllAdm.Code304.106and35 IllAdm.Code3O4.105becausethedischargeof sludge

66IEPA Recordatp. 001520

67IEPA Recordatp. 001520 - 001521

68IEPA Recordatp. 000611thru 000614



from the digesterto theWatersof theStateis consideredanoffensivedischarge

thatresultedin offensiveconditionsin BangsLakeDrain in violation of 35

IllAdm.Code302.203.~~69

Shortlythereafter,anotherviolation occurredduring thenighton September23, 2003. 70

A LakelandNewspaperarticlein October,2003,reportedtheviolation to thepublic, statingthat

“...a foamout situationhadoccurredwith theaerobicdigesterduringthenight of
September23. Foamcontainingfecal coliform bacteriahadoverflowedafour-foot
containmentwall, spilled onto thefloor of thefacility, out thedoor,andintoa stormsewer
leadingto theBangsLake drain ‘This wasn’tpureraw sewage,but it wasdilutedraw
sewage’....”71

Given thenumerousviolationsofthecurrentNPDESpermitby theWaucondaWWTP in

thepast,what basisdoestheBoardbelievewould justify believingthatthe WWTPwill comply

with theadditionalconditionssetforth in thepermitmodificationrequestedcurrently ormodified

by theAgency?

THIS BOARD SHOULD TAKE NOTICE: TheIEPA failedto produceany records

duringthis proceedingrelativeto aComplaint filed in LakeCounty,Illinois, by theAttorney

General’sOffice againsttheVillage ofWauconda,on August 17, 2004,---just six (6) daysprior

to theIEPA’s approvaloftheNPDESpermit modificationon August23, 2004.72 Thecomplaint

concernedtheSeptember24,2003 violation asdiscussedabove. TheIEPA attorneysknewof the

pendinglawsuitagainsttheVillage of Waucondaand shouldhaveproducedall ofthedocuments

69IEPA Recordat p. 001788thru 001791

70IEPARecordatp. 000609thru 000630

71IEPARecordatp. 000609

72Exhibit“B” - ConsentOrder- Case No. 04 CH1206 - filed 12/10/2004 attached hereto.



surroundingthecomplaintin this proceedingbeforethis Board. TheIEPA attorneyshadactual

knowledge,andby omittingsuchdocumentsactedarbitraryandcapriciouslyin excludingrelevant

documentsfrom yourPetitioner,andin effect, precludethis Boardfrom havingall relevant

informationbeforeit.

This Boardhasthe authorityto deviseadditionalmethodsandconditionsto ensure

WaucondaWWTP’s complianceby denyingthemodificationuntil additionalobjectivedatais

compiled,whichwould substantiateamoreinformeddecisionby thisBoard.

It shouldbenotedthatthedatacompiledby theVillage ofWauconda’s engineershasbeen

basedsolelyuponthewaterquality standardsat theoutfall andnot on an overallbasisfor the

watershedor for thereceivingstream,the FoxRiver,which is an impairedwaterway.

Theengineers,otherthanthe Village of Wauconda’s engineers,haverepeatedly

determinedthat the compileddatais weakandinconclusive—thatadditionalwaterquality data

should be collected and analyzed to determine the impact on the watershed as a whole—not just at

thepointoftheoutfall. Further,basedon suchadditionalcollecteddata,the additionalquantity

andquality of wastewateranticipatedby themodifiedpermit shouldbeanalyzedasto the

degradationto thereceivingstreamandultimatereceivingimpairedwaterwaywhich would

complywith the federalandstateanti-degradationrules.

VI. RELIEF REQUESTED

Eachandeverypointdiscussedhereinandtheconclusionsdrawnenablesthe District to

requestthefollowing relief from this HonorableBoard:

1. OrdertheIEPA to conductarule compliantanti-degradationassessment,including,but

not limited to thefollowing:



A. IEPA beorderedto revieweachandeveryalternative(s)for dischargeother

thanto SlocumLakeDrainageDitch;

B. IEPA beorderedto comply with all rulesprotectingthe existingusesofthe

receivingwaters,andtheFoxRiver— an impairedwaterway.

C. Considerationofadditionaltreatmentlevels, i.e., the impactof chlorinationon

thedownstreamenvironmentandimpairedwaterway;

D. IncreasetheMonitoring Requirementsby theVillage of Waucondafrom the

WaucondaWWTP andin thedownstreamreceivingwaters(Fiddle Creek

andtheFox River) for dissolvedoxygenlevelsandotherwaterquality

Standardrequirements.

2. BecauseofWauconda’snumerouspastpermitviolations,this Boardshouldorderthe

IEPA to closelymonitorandtest(monthlybasis)theVillage ofWauconda’s influent, affluent,and

sludge,aswell as any dischargefor organicsandheavymetalsand all otherpriority toxic

pollutants.

3. For suchotherreliefasmaybe deemedappropriateandreasonableunderthe

circumstances by this Board.

SLOCUM LAKE DRAINAGE DISTRICT
OF LAKE

attorney
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every part thereof in all other ways and for such other considerations as it would be lawful for any
person owning the same to deal with the case, whether aimilar to or different from the ways above
specified, at any time or times hereafter.

In no case shall any party dealing with said Trustee, or any successorin trust, in relation to said

real estate, or to whom satd real estate or any part thereof shall be conveyed, contracted to be sold,
leased or mortgaged by said Trustee, or any successorin trust, b~obliged to see to the application of
any purchase money, rent or money borrowed or advanced on said rent estate, or be obliged to see that
the terms of this trust have been complied with, or be uhflged to Inquire into the authority necessity
or expediency of any act of said Trustee, or be obliged or privileged to inquire into any of the terms
of said Trust Agrecs~nt and every deed, trust deed, mortgage, lease or other instrument executed by said
~rustce, or any successor in trust, in relation to said real estate shall be conclusive evIdence in

ravor 0 CVCT~person C Including the Registrar at Titles of said county) relying upon or claiming under
any such conveyance,lease or other instrument, (a) that at the tIe~of the delivery thereof the trust
created by this Indenture and by said Trust Agreement was in full force and effect, (b) that such
conveyance or other instrument was executed in accordance ,iith the trusts, conditions and limitations
contained in this Indenture and in said Trust Agreement or in all amendments thereof, if any, and
binding upon all beneficiaries thereunder, Cc) that said Trustee or any successorin trust, was duly
authorized,’ and empowered to execute and deliver every suchdeed, trust deed, lease, mortgage or oIlier
instrument and Cd) if the conveyanceis made to a successor(s) in trust, that such successor(s) In trust
have been properly appointed and arc fully vested with all the title, estate, rights, powera,
authorities, duties and obligations of its, his or their predecessor in trust.

This conveyance is made upon the express understanding and conditIon that neither Grantee, individually
or as Trustee, nor it successor(s) in trust shall incur any personal liability or be subjected to any
claim, judgment or decree for anything it or they or its or their agents or attorneys may do or omIt to
do in or about the said real estate or under the provisions at this Deed or said Trust Agreementor any

amendment thereto, or for injury to person or property happening in or about said real estate, any and
all such liability’ being hereby expressly waived and released. Any contract, obligation or Indebtedness
incurred or entered into by the Trustee in connection with said real estate may be entered into by ft in

the name of the then beneficiaries under said Trust Agreement as their attorney—in-fact, hereby
irrevocably appointed for such, purposes, or at the election of the Trustee, in its own name, as Trustee
of an express trust and not individually (and the Trustee shall have no obligation whatsoeverwIth
respect to any such contract, obligation or indebtedness except only so ‘far, as’ the trust property and
funds in the actual possession of the Trustee shall bc applicable for the payment and discharge
thereof). All persons and corporations whomsoever and whatsocver shall be charged with notice of this
condition from the date of the filL,

1
for record of this Deed.

Ebe interest of eachand every benefIciary hereunder mad under said Trust Agreement and of all persons
claiming under them or any of them shall b~only in the earnings, avails and proceedsarisIng from the
sale or any other disposition of said real estato, and such interest is hereby declared to bc personal
property, and no beneficiary h,crcunder’sh,alt have any title or interest, legal or equitable, Ln or to

‘said ‘real estate as such, but only an interest in earnings, avails and proceeds thereof as aforesaId,
the intention hereof being to Vest in said Cr.,utee the entire legal and equitable title in fee Simple,
in and to all of the real, c~tatc above described.

If the title to any of the above real estate is now or hereafter registered, the Registrar of Titles is
hereby directed nor to register or note in tho certificate of title or duplicate thereof, or memorial,
the words “in trust,” or “upon condition,” or “with, limitations,” or vord~of similar import, in accord-
ance wIth the statute in such case made and provided.



EXHIBIT “A”

TIlE WEST HALF OF LOT 1 OF THE NORTH WEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3,
TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
IN LAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

TEAT PART OF THE SOUTH EAST QUARTER OF THE NORTH EAST QUARTER AND
OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTH EAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP
43 NORTh, RANGE 9. EAST OF, THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING
NORTHERLY AND EASTERLY OF FOX RIVER, IN LAKE COUNTY. ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF TUE EAST HALF OP THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTh WEST QUARTER
OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, LYING NORTHERLY OF THE FOX RIVER, IN LAKE COUI4IY,ILLINOIS.

TEAT PART OF TUE WEST HALF OF TEE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 33,
TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF TUE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 5 ACRES MO) 132 PERCHES
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF TUE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION
AND SOUTHWESTERLY OF TEE CENTERLINE OF THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY KNOWN AS
STATE AID ROUTE I 35, AS SHOWN ON PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED AS DOCUMENT
#523755 IN BOOK 29 OF PLATS, PACE 12, (EXCEPT TUE WEST 2 RODS THEREOF
AND EXCEPT THAT PART THEREOF DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS• TO—WIT: COMMENCING
AT THE INTERSECTION OP TUE CENTERLINE OF TUE PUBLIC HIGHWAY AS FORMERLY
LOCATED AND TEE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 5 ACRES AND 132 PERCHES OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF TUE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 33, THENCE
WEST 74 RODS; THENCE SOUTH 8 RODS; THENCE EAST 2 RODS; THENCE NORTH 6
RODS; THENCE’ EAST 72 RODS AND THENCE NORTH 2 RODS TO TUE PLACE OF
BEGINNING) AND (EXCEPTING THEREFROM FOX RIVER ESTATES, ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 9, 1959, AS DOCUMENT 1 1047902 IN
LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS). ALL CONTAININC 27.70 ACRES MORE OR LESS,

IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THE WEST HALF OP THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF OF TUE NORTH WEST QUARTER
LYING NORTH OF FOX RIVER IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 43,NORTU, RANGE 9,
EAST OF THE ‘flIIRI) PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.-

THAT PART OF THE SOUTH WEST QUARTER OF TUE SOUTH EAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, LYING SOUTH WESTERLY OF TIlE CENTER LINE OF STATE AID ROUTE
135, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS,.

ThAT PART OF THE FRACTIONAL NORTH HALF OF TUE SOUTH EAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANCE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, LYING EAST ,OF THE FOX RIVER IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

~
LOT B II~ F~X RIVER EST(ITES, A SUBDIVISION IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

~C(cfa.J9 lb *~x-,,t4rrecrtt~ Ccnr),tc. q, ic,cq A~~/e,c~’~.zt’ /~7~O2.
SUBJECT TO: See attached.

£JTC~I/?-da’,ccs
2703Y f~ek~ecfSj~~a.d
~ L4~it1 wolo

THAT PART OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION
33, TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OP THE THiRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE CENTER LINE OF STATE AID ROUTE NO. 35
(ROBERTS ROAD) AS SHOWN ON THE PLAT OF SURVEY RECORDED AS DOCUMENT
~23,s.s, IN SOO}~29 OF FLATS, PAGE 12,’IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

-~- (exc.~pri.,,giJ-4r’i~~‘tk we4q~oj~Zec~c-~~hi&
C~sr 7~Z~
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SUBJECT TO:

RIGHTS OF WAYFOR DRAINAGE TILES, DITCHES, FEEDERSAND LATERALS.
/‘_

RIGHTS OF THE DUBLIC AND THE ADJOINING OWNERSTO THE FREE AND
UNOBSTRUCTEDFLOW OF THE WATERSOF ANY UNNAMEDSTREAMOR BODY OF
WATER LOCATEDON THE LAND AND THE USE OF THE SURFACE OF SAID
STREAMOR BODY OF WATER.
(AFFECTS PARCELS 2, 3, 4, 5, 7 AND 9).

RIGHTS OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, STATE OF ILLINOiS, THE
MUNICIPALITY AND THE PUBLIC IN AND TO THAT PART OF THE LAND LYING
WITHIN THE BED OF -THE FOX RIVER AND THE RIGHTS OF OTHER OWNERSOF
LAND BORDERINGON THE RIVER IN RESPECT TO THE -WATER OF SAID
RIVER.
(AFFECTS PARCELS 2. 3, 7 AND 9).

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC AND OF THE STATE U’ ILLINOIS, IN AND TO SO
MUCHOF THE LAND AS DEDICATED FOR ROADPURPOSESBY INSTRUMENTS.
ONE DATED AUGUST ‘14, 1942 AND RECORDEDFEBRUARY 1, 1943 AS
DOCUMENT523775; AND ONE DATED SEPTEMBER19. 1942 AND RECORDED
FEBRUARY2, 1943 AS DOCUMENT523829-AND ANOTHERDATED DECEMBER
28, 1942 AND RECORDEDFEBRUARY2, 1943 AS DOCUMENT523828 AND
SHOWNON PLATS OF SURVEY RECORDEDFEBRUARY 1. 1943 AS DOCUMENTS
523754, 523755 AND 523775 IN BOOK29 OF PLATS PAGES 11 AND 12
(AFFECTS PART OF PARCELS4, 5 AND 6 LYING WITHIN 40 FEET O•FTHE
CENTER LINE OF ROBERTSROAD).

RIGHTS. IF ANY. OF THE SLOCUMDRAINAGE DISTRICT,.LAKE COUNTY
ILL INOIS, IN AND TO THAT PART •OF THE LAND CONDEMNEDFOR DRAINAGE
DITCHES AND DRAINAGE RIGHTS OF WAY OR TAKEN OR USED FOR DRAINAGE
PURPOSESBY PROCEEDINGSHAD IN THE COUNTYCOURT! OF LAKE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, (GENERAL NO. 6828) ON PEUTION FILED SEPTEMBER17,
1914. - -

ffieiT er-tIenTiiEnt~ ILLU~9Is �ASEGM~AW!AN IL~-IN9lS �9flP’9RA+I~ç-

WAYFOR THE PURPOSEOF LAYING, MAINTAINING
REPLACING AND REMOVINGA GAS MAIN A 1-H~C~
FACILITIES APPURTENANTTHERETO 10 RYG OF ACCESSITS SUCCESSORSAND ASSIGNS, TO A PERPETUAL EASEMENT‘A RENEWJNG.-

THERETOFOR SAID ONG AND ACROSSTHELAND HEREIN IN AOSE~J~ON~CM1tDN SHOWNON ATTACHEDTHERETO.
AS GRANTED
APRI , ~ DATED MARCH24
__________________ 1259529. . 1965 AND RECORDED

EXISTING LEASES.
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EASEMENT FOR UTILITIES OVER THE EAST 10 FEET OF LOT B AS SHOWN
ON THE PLAT OF SAW SUBDIVISION.
(AFFECTS PARCEL 10). ‘. -

RIGHT OF INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER 20 FEET OF LAND LYING SOUTH OF
LOT A IN FOX RIVER ESTATES TO CHANNEL EAST OF LQT 12 TOGET!IER~..

WITH THE RIGHT TO BUILD A PIER OR MOOR A BOAT IN THIS CHANNEL, AS
GRANTED IN THE AGREEMENTRECORDEDJUNE 9, 1960 AS DOCUMENT ‘. -‘

1071653 AND DEED RECORDEDFEBRUARY 10, 1965 AS DOCUMENT1253885,
AND AS AMPLIFIED BY AFFIDAVIT RECORDED APRIL 5, 1989 AS DOCUMENT
2780058.
(AFFECTS THE NORTH 10 FEET OF PARCEL 10 AND PART OF THE LAND
HEREIN COVEREDBY THE CHANNEL.).

EASEMENTFOR INGRESS AND EGRESSOVER A TWENT’t FOOT.STRIP BETWEEN
GERALDINE LANE AND THE CHANNEL EAST OF FOX RIVER ESTATES
DESCRIBED AS COMMENCINGAT A POINT ON THE WEST LINE AND 10 FEET
NORTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT ‘A’ IN SAID SUBDIVISION;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT ‘A’ AND LOT ~B A
DISTANCE OF 20 FEET; THENCE EAST PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID LOT ‘A’ 245 FEET; THENCENORTH40 FEET. MOREOR LESS, TO THE
WATERSEDGE OF THE CHANNEL; THENCEWESTERLYALONGTHE WATERSEDGE
OF SAID CHANNEL 20 FEET, MOREOR LESS, TO A POINT 25 FEET EAST OF
THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT ‘A’; THENCE SOUTH 20 FEET. MOREQR
LESS, TO A POINT WHICH IS 10 FEET NORTHOF THE EXTENSIONEAST5OF
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT ‘A’, SAID POINT ALSO BEING 25 FEET~
EAST OF THE EAST LINE OF~SAID LOT ‘A”; THENCE WEST225 FEET,
ALONG A LINE 10 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF, -

SAID LOT ‘A’ TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; TOGETHERWITH THE RIGHT
TO BUILD A PIER IN THE CHANNEL AND THE RIGHT TO MOORBOA-I IN THE
CHANNEL, AS GRANTEDBY WARRANTYDEED RECORDEDJULY 26, 1966 AS
DOCUMENT1311302, CONVEYINGLOT 13 IN SAID SUBDIVISION AND ALSO
CONTAINED IN VARIOUS OTHER GRANTS AND CONVEYANCESOF LOTS IN SAID
SUBDIVISION, AND AS AMPLIFIED BY AFFIDAVIT RECORDEDAPRIL 5, 1989
AS DOCUMENT2780058.
(AFFECTS THE NORTH 10 FEET OF PARCEL 10 AND PART OF PARCEL 4 AND
PART OF ‘THE LAND FALLING IN THE-CHANNEL).

RIGHT OF COMMONWEALTHEDISON COMPANYAND ILLINOIS BELL TELEPHONE
COMPANY, THIS SUCCESSORSAND ASSiGNS, TO AN EASEMENTTO
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, ETC., THEIR FACILITIES USED IN CONNECTION
WiTH OVERHEADAND UNDERGROUNDTRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION OF_
ELECTRICITY, SOUNDSAND SIGNALS, TOGETHERWITH RIGHT OF ACCESS
THERETO, ‘OVER -THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF THE NORTH30 FEET OF PARCEL 1
AND THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF THE NORTH 30 FEET OF PART OF PARCEL 2 IN
THE SOUTHEAST1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4 AND ALSO OVER
THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF THE NORTH30 FEET OF THE EAST 140 FEET OF
THE SOUTHWEST1/4 OF THE-NORTHEAST1/4 OF SECTION 4 AS GRANTEDBY
INSTRUMENT RECORDEDMAY 6, 1977 AS DOCUMENT1834912 AND CORRECTED
BV GRANT RECORDEDAPRIL 10, 1989 AS DOCUMENT2781084.
(AFFECTS PARCELS 1 AND 2)..

2825909
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RIGHT OF COMMONWEALTHEDISON COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORSAND ASSIGNS,
TO AN EASEMENT TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, ETC., THEiR FACILITIES
USED IN CONNECTION WITH OVERHEAD AND UNDERGROUND TRANSMISSION ~IND
DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTRICITY, SOUNDSAND SIGNALS, TOGETHERWITH
RIGHT OF ACCESS’THERETO, OVER THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2 AND 9 AS
SHOWNON EXHIBIT “A’ OF THE INSTRUMENT AS GRANTEDBY INSTRUMENT
RECORDEDJUNE 14, 1984 AS DOCUMENT-2289835. (AFFECTS PARCELS 2
AND 9). ‘

ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO ORDINANCESBY THE COUNTYOF LAKE ONE
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT 2037978. OTHERS RECORDED FROM TIME TO -TIME,
RELATING TO THE PAYMENTOF CERTAIN CHARGESAS A CONDiTION-
PRECEDENTTO PERMISSION TO TAP INTO A SEWEROR WATER SYSTEM. SAiD
INSTRUMENTSSHOULDBE CONSIDEREDWHENDEALING-WITH THE PROPERTY
INSURED HEREIN.

SLOCUM-DRAINAGE DISTRICT-. WARRANTNO. 73 MR 107 (68 MR 3526
COUNTYCOURT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS) FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES
CONFIRMEDOCTOBER9; ‘1968 FOR S16.OO ON THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE EAST
1/2 OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE NORTH OF RIVER OF SECTION 4, IOWNSHIP

43 NORTH, RANGE 9, PAYABLE WITH GENERAL REAL ESTATE TAXES. THE
1976 ANNUAL INSTALLMENT HAS BEEN PAID
(NOT LEVIED FOR THE YEARS 1977 THROUGH 1987).

SLOCUM DRAiNAGE DISTRICT; WARRANT NO. 73 MR 107 (68 MR 3626.
COUNTYCOURT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS)’FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES
CONFIRMEDOCTOBER9, 1968 FOR. 5-14.00 ON THE EAST 20 ACRES(EXCEPT
FOX RIVER ESTATES AND EXC.EPT THE WEST 2 RODS) SOUTHWESTSOUTH. ,-‘ -

WEST SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 44 NORTH, RANGE 9, PM’ABLE WITH GENERAL-. -~ --

REAl. ESTATE TAXES. THE 1987 ANNUAL INSTALLMENT HAS BEEN PAID
(NOT LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 1977 THROUGH 1984).

SLOCUMDRAINAGE DISTRICT, WARRANTNO. 73 MR 107 (68 MR 3626
COUNTY COURT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS) FOR DRAINAGE-PURPOSES
CONFIRMEDOCTOBER9,1968 FOR $14.00 (EXCEPT CASHMOREROBERTS
ROAD ACRE) PART LYING SOUTHERLYSLOCUMDRAINAGE DISTRICT PART OF
THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTH WEST 1/4 OF SECTION 33,.TOWNSHIP 44
NORTH. RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIqIAN; PAYABLE

WITH GENERAL REAL ESTATE TAXES. THE 1987 ANNUAL INSTALLMENT HAS
BEEN PAID.
(NOT LEVIED YEARS ‘1977 THROUGH1984).

2825909—3—
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SLOCUMDRAINAGE DISTRICT, WARRANTNO. 73 MR 107 (68 MR 3626
COUNTY COURT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLiNOIS) FOR DRAINAGE PURPOSES
CONFIRMEDOCTOBER9, 1968 FOR S14.00 ON PERMANENT INDEX NUMBER
1304100003, PAYABLE WITH GENERAL REAL ‘ESTATE -TAXES. THE 1987
ANNUAL INSTALLMENT HAS BEEN PA ID. . -

EN~R8ACH?,1L1~-1or A I~AM~DAflN AND METAL SHED OVE~.P—THF ~
~ OY—D6CUMEM 52~DISCLOSEO BY A

RIGHTS OF PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANYOF NORTHERNILLINOIS, ITS
SUCCESSORSAND ASSIGNS, TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN AND RENEW ‘POLE
LINE EQUIPMENT’ AND ‘GAS MAIN EQUIPMENT’ IN THE PUBLIC HIGHWA-V
KNOWN AS ROBERTS ROAD AS GRANTED BY AN UNRECORDED EASEMENT DATED
MARCH 15, 1940, A COPY OF WHICH IS IN OUR FILE.
(AFFECTS PART OF PARCELS 2. 4, AND 5 I-N ROBERTS ROAD).

RIGHTS OF THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY AND ILLINOIS BELL
TELEPHONE COMPANY, THEIR SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, TO CONSTRUCT,
LAY, MAINTAIN, ETC., THEIR EQUIPMENT CONSISTING OF POLES, ‘ETC.,
IN, UPON, UNDER AND ALONG THE WEST 10 FEET OF THE EAST 160 FEET

OF THE NORTH 1500 FEET OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEASTQUARTER
OF SECTION 4..AS GRANTEDBY I UMENfDATEDJUNE 12, 1957 AND --

RECORDEDJUNE 19 1957 AS DOCUMENT954371.
(AFFECTS PARCEL 2). -

BUftDIN~ LI~~Ef~AST OF7~E’~ESfiJINEOF LOT “B’AS
ON THE PLAT OF SAWSUBDIVISION.
(AFFECTS PARCEL 10). -

MATTERS OF SURVEY A~THEII RELATE TO T ASTERLV BOUNDARYLINE OF
PARCEL 1 ONLY. -

(AFFECTS PARCEL 1). -

-4- 7



Certified Copy

from

Circuit Court of THE NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,

Lake County, Illinois
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) -

s

COUNTY OF L A K E ) ‘I. ‘~‘ --~--<-‘~

I, SALLY D. COFFELT, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, LAKE COUNTY, in and for the State of

Illinois, and the keeper of the records, files and seals thereof,

do hereby certify the above and foregoing to be a true, perfect and

complete copy of a certain JDtXME1~1TORDER

________________________________, General Number 92 ED 69

filed in my office on OCIOBER 5

19_92 in a certain cause L1~TELY pending in said Court, wherein

LAKE COUNTYFORESTPRESERVE DISTR[C~ Plaintiff

and N~1ERICANNATIONAL BNSJK AND TRUST CC~PP1Nyet al., Defendant.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand, and

affixed the seal of said Court, at

W’aukegan, Illinois

OCTOBER . 19 92

SALL D. C FFELT
Clerk of the Circuit Court

BY: ~

b~uty~1e~k.

171—178 12/80
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) OCT
SS.

COUNTYOF L A K E ) 9 ~ ~

~
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE NINETEENTH CIRCUIT CI-ER1~

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

LAKE COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE
DISTRICT, etc., et al.,

Plaintiff,

vs. . ) GEN. NO, 92 ED 69

AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK & TRUST ) PARCEL NO. FRP-1

COMPANY, etc., et al.,
Defendant,

JUDGMENTORDE

This causecoming on to be heard on the SecondAmendedComplaint

for Condemnation of the LAKE COUNTY FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT to

ascertain the just compensation for the taking of certain property for

forest preserve purposes, as set forth in the Second Amended Complaint

for Condemnation;

AND the plaintiff appearing by JOSEPH T. MORRISON of MORRISON &

MORRISON, P.C., and the defendants, AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK & TRUST

COMPANYOF CHICAGO, as Trustee under Trust Agrement dated June 29,

1989, and known as Trust Number 108688~00, and MOORINGSON FOX RIVER

LTD. PARTNERSHIP, appearing by Thomas Z. Hayward, Jr. ot BELL, BOYD &

LLOYD; and defendant, BOULEVARD BANK N.A., as Mortgagee under the

Mortgage recorded as Document No. 2825912,, appearing by Michael

Weininger of KATZ, RANDALL & WEINBERG, and defendant, VILLAGE OP FOX

RIVER VALLEY GARDENS, appearing by Samuel Diamond of DIAMOND,-LeSUEtJR

& ROTH ASSOCIATES;

3230245



AND it appearing to the Court that all defendants to this

proceeding have been served by process as provided by statute and have

entered their Appearances and have had due notice of these proceedings,

and that the Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this

proceeding and of all parties hereto;

AND the Court being fully advised that all of the parties have

entered into a Settlement Stipulation waiving view of the premises and

jury prove-up;

AND the terms of that Settlement Stipulations are incorporated

into this Judgment Order by agreement;

AND the Court being fully advised in the premises,

On motion of plaintiff,

IT IS THEREFOREORDERED THAT:

1. Pursuant to the Stipulation between the parties, the sum of

FIVE MILLION EIGHT HUNDREDTHOUSANDAND NO/lOG ($5,800,000.00) DOLLARS

constitutes the just compensation to the owner or owners of or party

and parties interested in Parcel FRP—1 for the taking thereof by the

plaintiff of fee simple title thereto, and judgment is herein entered

accordingly.

2. Upon payment by the plaintiff within thirty (30) days to the

Treasurer of Lake County, Illinois, of the sum of FIVE MILLION EIGHT

HUNDREDTHOUSANDAND NO/100 ($5,800,000.00) DOLLARS, and upon Motion of

plaintiff providing proof of deposit of said sum, the plaintiff shall

be vested with fee simple title to the following described land as of

October 15, 1992:

PARCEL FRP-1: SEE EXHIBIT “A”

3230245



3. The terms of the Settlement Stipulation filed herein as to

Parcel FRP-l are hereby incorporated into and made a. part of this

Judgment Order, and the Court retains jurisdiction to enforce the terms

of that Settlement Stipulation, and further retains jurisdiction to

place plaintiff in full, complete and quiet possession of Parcel FRP—l

on October 15, 1992, by writ of assistance or otherwise.

4. This Court shall retain jurisdiction to hear and determine

all claims and all rights in and to the just compensation for Parcel

PP.2—i pursuant to the Code of Civil Procedure, Sections 7—123 and 7-

127.

5. Prior to October 15, 1992, the defendants, except the VILLAGE

OF POX RIVER VALLEY GARDENS, will convey to the plaintiff by Bill of

Sale or otherwise, good and merchantable title to the personal property

described on Exhibit “B”. This personal property shall be in good and

working condition, taking into account the age of the equipment and

normal wear and tear.

6. Prior to October 15, 1992, the defendants, except the VILLAGE

OF FOX RIVER VALLEY GARDENS, will cause to have the horses,. video

games, Coke machines, other vending machines, duck blinds, and

inoperable boats removed from the property.

7. This cause is set for further status on October 14, 1992, at

9:00 a.m., to determine whether the plaintiff has been provided with

3
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sufficient cooperation under the terms of the Settlement Stipulation to

take title to the subject property.

ORDER PREPARED BY:

Joseph T. Morrison
DONALD T. MORRISON

& ASSOCIATES, P.C.
32 N. West Street
Waukegan, Illinois
708/244—2660
\fpdfrpi\jo

‘V

ENTER:

4

(0

~LO

JUDGE

3230245
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EXHIBIT ‘IA”
LEGAL 1)ESCRIPTION’

PARCEL NO. 1: That part of the West half of the Southwest Quarter of
Section 33, Township 44 North, Range 9, East of the Third Principal
Meridian, lying South of the North line of the South 5 acres and 132
perches of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of sai..d
Section and Southwesterly of the Centerline of the Public Highway known
as State Aid Route ~35, as shown on plat of survey recorded as Document
No. 523755 in nook 29 of Plats, page 12, (except the West 2 rods
thereof and except that part thereof described as follows, to—wit:
Commencing at the intersection of the Centerline of the public highway
as formerly Located and the North line of the South 5 acres and 132
perches of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said
Section 33; thence West 74 rods; thence South 8 rods; thence East 2
rods; thence North 6 rods; thence East 72 rods and thence North 2 rods
to the place of beginaing) and (excepting therefrom Fox River Estates,
except Lot 3, according to the Plat thereof recorded October 9, 1959,
as Document No. 1047902), except any part thereof heretofore dedicated
and used for highway purposes, in Lake County, Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 2: That part of the East half of the Southwest Quarter of
Section 33, Township 44 North,. Range 9, East of the Third Principal
Meridian, (except that pa~ thereof lying Northeast of the Centerline
of Roberts Road State Aid Route ~35) and (except any part thereof
heretofore dedicated and used for highway purposes), in Lake County,
Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 3: The West half of that part of the East half of the North
West quarter lying North of the centerline of the Pox River in Section
4, Township 43 North, Range 9, East of the Third Principal Meridian,
in Lake County, Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 4: That Dart of the East half of the East half of the North
West Quarter of Section 4, TowushiD 43 North, Range 9, East of the
Third Prixici~a). Meridian, lying Northerly of the centerline of the Fox
River, in Lake County, Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 5: That part of the South East Quarter of the North East
Quarter and of the West half of the North East Quarter of Section 4,
Townshi~43 North, Range 9, East’ of the Third Prjnci~al Meridian, lying
Northerly and Easterly of the centerline of the Fox River, except any
part thereof heretofore dedicated and used for highway pu.rooses, in
Lake County, Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 6: The West half of Lot 1 of the North West Quarter of
Section 3, Township 43 North, Range 9, East of the Third Principal
Meridian, in Lake County, Illinois.

PARCEL NO. 7: That cart of the Fractional North half of the South East
Quarter of Section 4, Township 43 North, Range 9, East of the Third
Principal Meridian, lying East of the centerline of the Fox River, in
Lake County, Ill~nois. —11 3230245
PARCEL NO. 10: That part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast
Quarter of Section 4, Township 43 North, Range 9, East of the Third
Princibal Meridian, described as follows: . 3eginning at the Southwest



corner of Roberts Road Estates Su.bdivision, a subdivision recorded
January 13, 1981 as Document 2097169; thence South along the West line
of said quarter quarter section 270 feet to the Southwest corner of
said quarter quarter section; thence East along the South U.ne of the
said quarter quarter section to a point 61.3 feet West of the Southeast
corner thereof; thence Northwesterly 200 feet to a southeast corner of
premises conveyed by Document 2307038 recorded August 30, 1984; thence
West along the South Line of premises conveyed by Document 2307038 to
the Southwest corner of premises conveyed by said document; thence
North 70 feet along the West line of premises conveyed by sai.d Document
and. said West line extended to a point 270 feet North of the South line
of said quarter quarter section and thence West along the North line of
the South 270 feet of said quarter quarter section to the point of
beginning, in Lake County, Illinois,

PARCEL NO. 11: That part of the South West quarter of the South East
quarter of Section 33, Township 44 North, Range 9, East of the Third
Principal Meridian, lying South Westerly of the centerline of Roberts
Road (State Aid Route 35), except any part thereof heretofore dedicated
and used for highway purposes, in Lake County, Illinois.

3230245



EXHIBIT “B”

1. All piers, both channels.

2. Floating pier at launching ramp.

3. 1972 Dodge truck with tank.

4. Center vise and workbench (on south side of shop wall).

5. 1 ton electric hoist and trolley on rail in shop.

6. All office furniture in office.

7. 1 1/2 HP air compressor.

8. Liquid Propane Pump.

9. “Big boat” trailer.

10. Hydraulic boat trailer.

11. Pontoon boat trailer.

12. Old huff for lifting boats.

13. John Deere tractor - BackHoe and loader 3020.

14. Case tractor and 6’ mower.

15. 1.1!. 140 and 5’ mower.

16. Kubota G6200 and 4’ mower.

17. Welder.

18. Double wide trailer with existing recreation room (and no

washrooms).

q 3230245
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E~/~b;:*~

IN THE CIRCUIT COURTOF THE NINETEENTH JU~ICIAt. CIRCUIT
1~KECOUNTY, ILLINOIS fl f~ r~

CNANCSR.Y DIVISION IR LI L

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) u•
cx ~e1. LISA MADIGAN~ Attorney ) 3 0 2004
General of the State of U1jnoi~,

?Lainti~f,

v. ) No. 04 CH 1206

VILL~.CE OF WAUCONDA.
an Illinois fiunicipal Corporation,

Dsfendant.

cLQ~La!P1~

Plaintiff. PEOPLE OF TNE STATE OF ILLINOIS. ex rel. LISA

y1ADzG~N.,~ttorney General of the State of Illinoi.e. the Il1ino~.s

Envjrox~nenta1 Protection Agency (‘~Illinois EPA”), end te~endant,

VIlLAGE OP wMJCONOA. have agreed to the ~neking c~f thi9 Cozeent

Order and submit it to thiB Court for approval. The parties

agree that the statement o~facts contained herein represents a

~ir s i~aryof the evidence and testin~ony which would be

introduced by the parties if a trial were held. The parties

further stipulate that this statament of facts is made and agreed

upon f~r purposes of settlement only and that neither the fact

that a party has entered into this Consant order, nor any of the

facts atipulated herein, shall be introduced into ev~dence in any

other proceeding regarthng the c1a~.rnsasserted in the Complaint

except as othsrwi~e prov~e~1herein. If this Court app~ov’es and

enters this Coneer~t Order, Defendant agrees to be bound by the

E�gE~94S£48 dcg~Q ;~ ea qa,~
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Consent Order anc3 not to contest its vaudity in any subsequent

proeeec3ir.g cc, implement or er.feree its terms.

I.

~zSI~ICTIQ$

This Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter herein arid

of the parties consenting hereto pursuant to the Illinois

~rivironmenta1 Protection Act (‘~Act”), 415 ILCS 5/1 et seq.

(2002)

rr.
At~O~XZA~ION

The undersigned representatives for each party certify that

they are gully authorized by the party whom they representto

enter into the terms and cond~.tions of this Consent Order arid to

legally bind them. to it.

lIZ-

~TATZHZWf ~OP~~

A. ~

1. On August 17, 2004. a Complaint was filed an behalf

of the People of the State of Illinois by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney

General of the State of Illinois, en her own motion and. upon the

request of the Illinois EPA, pursuant to Section 42(4) and (e) of

the Act, 4:L5 ILCS 5/42 (d) and Ce) (2002), against the Defendant.

2. The Illinois EPA is an adm~.nistrative agency of the

State of Illinois. created pursuant to Section 4 of the Act, 415

n,cs 5/4 (2002)

2
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3. ~At all times relevant to the Complaint. Defendant ~ae

~nd is an illincis municipal corporation, organized and operat.thg

under the laws of the State of I11jnoj~.

B, Site ~e~crthtion

At all times relevant to the Complaint, Defendant

owr~d and operated a mun~cipal waste water treatment plant

~‘POTW”)• located at 302 Slocutn Lake Road, qauconda, Lake County,

Illinois V’faciUty” or ‘site”)

2. On September24, 2003, a malfunction at Defendant~s

POTWresulted in t~e discharge of untreated and partially treated

sewage into storri sewers leading to gangs Lake X~rain.

C. AU.c~*tion of 14pC~1jancs

PlaintiU contends that the Defendant has violated the

following provisions of the Act and Illinois Pollution Control

Soard Y’Soard”) Regulations:

Count I; WATER POLLUTION,

vjolatio~ of 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (2002);

Count II: CREATING A RATER POLL~YEZON}1Ay.~JW,

violation of 415 ILC$ S/12(d) (2002);

Count III: VIOLATION OF WATER QUAL!D1 STANDARDS,
violation ~f 415 ILCS 5/12(*) (2002) and
35 Iii. M~n. Code 302.203;

Count IV: VIOLATION OF EFFLUENT SIM~DARDS,
violation of 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (2002), and 35 Ill.
Adm. Code 304.104 an~ 304.106;

Count V: NPDES PERMIT VIOLATIONS,
violation of 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2302), and NPDES
permit ~1o. 1L0020109.

3
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D. o~Vi~l~i~

The Defendant neither admits r.or denies the violations

allagedin the Complaint filed in this matter and referenced

herein.

Iv.

APPLIcABfl.,ITT

A. This Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upon

the Flair.tiff and the Defendant, and any officer, director,

agent., or employee of the Defendant, as well as any successors or

ase~.gns of the Defendant. The Defendant shall riot raise as a

defense to any enforcement action taken pursuant. t~o this Consent

c~rder the failure of any of its officers, directors, agents, or

employees to take such action as shall be required to comply with

the provisions of this Consent Order.

a. T~o change in ownership, corporate Status or operator of

the facility shall in any way alter the responsibilities of the

Defendant under this Consent Order. In the event of any

conveyance of title, easement or other interest in the facility,

the Defendant shall continue to be bound by and remain liable for

performance of all obligations under thia Consent Order, In

appropriate c~rcumetanCeS, however, the Defendant and a

contemplated future owner or operator of ‘the facility may jointly

request., and the Plaintiff, in its discretion may consider,

modification of this Consent Order to obligate the proposed

4
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purch~uer or operator to carry out future requi.re~rrents of this

Conse~:Order in place of, or ~.n addition to. the Defen~ar~t.,

C. In the event that the Defendant proposes to s~l or

transfer any real property or operations subject to this Consent~

Order, the Defendant shall notify the Plaintiff 30 days prior to

the conveyanceof title, ownership or other interest, including a

l.~aeehold intere.st in the facility or a portion thereof. The

Defendant shall make the prospective purchaser or successor’s

compliance with this Cth~sent Order a condition of ~ny such sale

or .tran~fer and shall provide a copy of t~.n Consent Order to any

such auccessor in intere~t~ This provision does not relieve the

Defendant from compliance w~th any regulatory requirement

regarding notice and transfer of applicable facility permits.

V.

~ v~ws&N~
This Conserit Order in no way affects the responsibilities of

the Defendant to comply with any other fec~eral,state or local

laws or regulat~1ons~includin9 but not limited to the Act and

Board Regulati.cnS~ ~5 Ill. Adrri. Code, Subtitles A through H.

VI,

The parties agree that the venue of any action comn~enced in

the circuit court for the purposes of interpretation and

enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Consent Order

shall be in the Circuit Court of Lake County, Illirio~s.

$
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VII.

It is the intent of the Plaint.ff and ~efer,dant that the

provisions ~f this Consent Order shall be sever~hle. and should

any provision be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to

be inconsistent with state or federal law1 and therefore

unenforceable, the remaining clauses shall remain in f~.i1l force

arid effect.

VII I.
T .QRD~

This Court, having ;ur~.sdiction over the parties an~ subject

matter, the parties having appeared? due notice having been

given, the Court having considered the stipulated facts and. being

advised in the premises, this Court finds the following relief

appropriate;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, AD~,TUDGEDMID D~C~EZ~

A. p.nalt~

1. a. The Defendant shall pay a civil pet~alty of Ten

‘otisand Dollars ($10,000.00) within thirty (30) days of the date

of entry of this Consent Order.

b. Payment shall be made by certified check or money

order, payable to the Illinois EPA for deposit into the

Environmental Protection Trust Fund (‘~EPTr) and shall be sent by

first cla~s mall and delivered to;

Illinois Environmental Proteetion Agency

6
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Fiscal Services
1021 ~~rth Grand Avenue East
P.O. Box 1927E
Springfie:.cl, IL 627g4-~9276

c. The name, case number, and the Oefe~dants Federal

g~mployer Identification Number (“REIN”> shall appear on the face

of the certified check or money order. A copy of the certified

check or money order and the transmittal letter shall be sent tO;

Christopher Grant
Assistant Attorney ceneral
Environmental Bureau
188 West Randolph St., suite 20~1
Chicago, Illinois 60601

2. For purposes of payment arid collection, the Defendant’s

attorney may be reached at the following address;

Mr. Rudolph F. I’iagna
Magna ~ ~7ohnson
495 ~. Riverside Drive, Suite 201
Gurnee, Illinois 60031

3. ~or purposes of payment arict collection, Defendant may

be reached at the following addresa~

Mayor
Village of Wauconda
103 South StateStreet
Waucortda, Illinois 61065

4, In the event of default, the Plairitiff shall be

entitled to reasonable costs of collection. thcludir,g reasonable

attorney’s fees.

B.~ Fu~r~ C~l~ancs

1. The Defendant shall implement and enforce a

pretreatment program in accordance with Village of Wauconda

7
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Ordinance 2000-0-31, adopted on Se~tentber19, 2000, end all

subsequent mod.~ficatione thereto. The Defendant shall ~uair~ta.in

legal authority adequate to fully implement its Pretreatment

Program. The Defendant shell:

a. Carry out independent inspection and monitorIng
procedures at least once per year, which will deternu.ne
whether each significant industrial user (“SItr’~ ~s in
compliance with applicable pretreatment standards;

b. Perform an evaluation, at least once every two (2)
years, to determine whether each ~IU needs a slug
coritrol plan. If needed, the Siti slug control plan
shall include the items specified in 40 CPR ‘ 403.8
(f) ~2) (v)

c. Update its inventory of i.ndustrial users (W’a) at

least annually and as needed, or as required by an
NPDES Permit, to ensure that all SItJa are properly
identified, characterized, arid categorized;

d. Receive and rev~.ew self monitoring and other ItI reports
to determine compliance with all pretreatnient standards
and requirements, M~dobtain appropriate remedies for
noncompliance by any I’J with any pretreatment standard
and/or requirement;

e. Investigate instancss of noncompliance, collect and
analyze samples, and compile other information with
sufficient care as to produce ev~dence admissible in
enforcement proceedings, including judicial action;

f. Require development, as necessary, of compliance
schedules by each industrial user for the Installation
of control technologies to meet applicable pretreatment
standards; arid,

g. Maintain an adequate revenue structure for continued
operation of Defendant’S pretreatment program.

2. The Defendant shell iseue/rei~sue permits or equivalent

control mechanisms to all SIUs prior to expiration of exist~ng

permits or prior to coem~encement of discharge in the case of new

dss;Lo SO 80 q~
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discha~es. The perrru.ts at a mirzirnum shall iriclude the elements

listed in 40 CPR 403.8(f~ (I) (iii).

3. The Defendant shall develop, maintain, and enforce, as

~c~eseary, local, limits to implemen: t.ne prohibitions in 40 CPR

403.S which prohibit the introduction of specific pollutants to

the waste treatment system from any source of nondomestic

discharge.

4. In addition to the general limitations expressed in

Paragraph 3 above, applicable pretreatment standards must be met

by eli industrial users of the POT~4. These limitatIo~’is include

speèif IC standards for certain industrial categories as

determined by Section 307(b) and S of the Clean Water Act, State

limits, or local limits, whichever are more stringent.

5. The Defendant shall provide an annual report briefly

describing the Defendant’s pretreatmeri~ prograt~ activities over

the previous calendar year. Such report shall be submitted no

later than January 31 of the following year, and shall be in the

tormat set forth in Illinois EPA’s POTW Pre~treatment Report

Package which OOntains &nformation regarding:

a. Ax updated listing of the Defendant’s industrial
users

b. A descriptive summary of the compliance activitie;
including numbers o~any major enforcement
actions, (i.e., administrative orders, penalties,
civil actions, etc.), and the outcome of those
actions. This includes an assessmentof the
compliance status of the Def~ndaut’sindustrial
users and the effectjveneg~ of the Defendant’s

9
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pretreatment program in meeting its needs and
objectives.

A desOriptior. of all substantive changes made to
the Defendant’s pretreatment program.

d. Results of sampling and analysis of POTWinfluer.t,
effluent, and sludge.

e. A summary of the findings from the priority
pollutants samp~.ing.

6. The Defendant shall mainta~n all pretreatment data and

records for a minimum Of three (3) years.

7. The Defendant shall provide wr!~.ttennotification t~ the

Sureau of Water’s ~BoW~SN)Managjflg Attorney, Illinois EPA, 1021

z~orthGrand Avenue East, P.O. ~ l~216, Springfield, Illinois

~2794-92?6 within five (5) days of receiving notice that any

industrial user of its sewage treatment plant is appealing to the

circuit court any condition ithposed by the Deføndant in any

permit issued to the industrial user by the Defendant. A copy of

the industrial user’s appeal and all other pleadings filed by all

parties shall be mailed to the BOW~&naging Attorney within f~ve

(5) days of the pleadings being filed in circuit court.

8. The Defendant shall ‘nitc~r itS influent, effluent and

sludge and report concentrations of the following parameters on

monitoring report forme provided by the Illinois EPA and include

their, in its annual report. Samples shall be taken at least once

per year, at the indicated detection limit or better and consist

of a 24-hour composite unless otherwise specified below. Sludge

d~:~,fl~o so q~
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~am~les shall be taken of final sludge and Consist of a grab

.semple reported on a dry weight basis.

STORET Minimum
CODE _______ ~tection 14,mit

01C97 Antimony 0.07 mg/La
01002 Arsenic 005 mg/La
0102.2 Boron* 0.005 mg/i
01007 Barium 0.5 mg/Li
01012 Beryllium 0.005 mg/La
01027 Cadmium 0.001 mg/La
01032 *Chromium (hex - grab not to exceed 24 hours~

3.01 mg/La
01034 Chz’oriuum(total)O.OS mg/La
01042 Copper 0,005 mg/La
0072.8 Cyanide (grab) (weak acid diasociable)

10.0 ug/La
00720 cyanide (grab) (total)

2,0.0 ug/La
00951 *pluorjde 0,1 mg/La
01045 Iron (total) 0.5 mg/La
01046 ~1ron (Disso1ved~

0.5 mg/La
01051 Lead 0.05 trig/La
01055 Manganese 0.5 trig/La
71900 Mercury 0.2 ug/La
01057 t~Jicke1 0.005 rrg/L
oos~s *0±1 (hexana soluble or equivalent) (Grab)

10 mg/La

3273~) Phenols (grab) 0,005 mg/La
011.47 Selenium 0.002 mg/La
01077 Silver (total) 0.333 mg/La
01059 Thallium 0.3 mg/ta
01092 Zinc 0.025 m~/L,

‘(Influent and effluent only)

Unless otherwise indicated, concentrations refer to the

to~a.l arr~unt of the con~cituentpresent in all phases, whether

solid, suspended or dissolved, elemental or combined including

sil oxi~.at~,on states, Where constituentS are commonly measured

~s other than total, the phase is so indicated.

11
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9. Within six (Si t~nth~of tkie date Cf entry of this

nsertt 0rc~r, the Def~rxdant sha:..l conduct an analysis for the

one hundred and ten (110) organic priority pouutants ide.r.tified

in 40 ~ 122 Appe~dix ~), Table II as amended. This monitoring

shell be done annually and reported on monitoring report forms

provided by the llincis EPA and shall consist of the following~

a. The ifluent arid effluent shall be sampledand
ana.yzed for the one hundred and ten (110) organic
priority pollutants, The ,ar~p1ing shall be done
during a day when industrial discharges are
expected ~o he occurring at normal to maximum
levels,

Samples for the analysis of acid and base/neutral
extractable compounds shall be 24-hour con~oaites.

(5) grab samples shall be collected each
monitoring day to be analyzed for volati.e organic
compounds. .i~ single analysis for volatile
pollutants (tlethod 624) may be run for each
monitoring day by compositing equal volu~ee of
eac~i grab sample directly in the OC purge and trap
apparatus in the laboratory, with no lesa than one
(1) mL of each grab included in the mposite.

~‘Jascewater samples must be handled, prepared, and
analyzea by GC/MS in accordance with iJS~PA Methods
624 and 625 of 40 CFI( 136 as amended.

B. The sludge shall be sampled and analyzed for the
one hundred and ten (110) organic priority
pollutants. A sludge sample shall be collected
concurrent with a wastewater sample and taken as
final aludge.

Sampling and analysis shall conform to USEP~
Methods 624 and 525 unless an alternate method hes
been approved by Illinois EPA.

z~. sanp].e collection, preservation and storage shall
confozm’. to approved USEPA procedures and
requirements.

c~‘~ ~ (~&S~L090 80 ~
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:o. In addic~Dn, the De±~ndar,:e~ia1lmonitor any new toxic

substance3 as defined by the clean Water Act, ~s amended,

~oliowing no ion by the Illinois E)~.

11. The ~e~endant shall report any noncompUa.rtcew~.th

ef~l~entor water quality atandards within 24 hours of

De.~er~dant’ s knowledge c~ such occurrence. Such report shall ~e

r~ade to ?laintiff’s representatives, ~s listed in Section ‘JI!t.~{.

of this Ccn~r.t Order.

~2. Analytical ~etect~on limits &a11 be in accordance with

4~ C~’~136. M~nI!num det.ect~.on limits ~or siud~e analyses sh&1L

be in ~ordance with 40 CFR 503.

C, ~

1. ~f the Defenda1~t f.~ils t2 complete any requi.red activity

as speciuie~ in Section VItI~B. of this ~nsent Order, the

~ef~nd~nt ~iafl. prov~4e notice to the Plaintiff of each failure

to comply with ti~ia Consent Order. In addition, the Defendant

ahali pay to the Plaintiff, for payTnent into the EPTF, stipulated

penalties p~rviolation for each.day of violation in the amount

c’t Two ~ur~dred Fifty ~ollars ($250.00) unti such time that

compLiance is achieved.

2. FolloW~,ngthe PlaintiU’s determination that the

p~fnt ~s failed to cou~leteperformance of ~ny tas)~or other

portion of worX, or fa~.led to provide a required submittal,

includi.ng any report or notification, Pi~inti~f may make a

~ootsc~ ~o ec q.~



O2/~9/2~E~515:44
PAGE 15

for ~tipula;ed pena.~.tiesupon the Defendant for its nonccmpliante

c~j~i t~iis Consent Order. Failure by the Plaintiff to n~ake this

demand~all rot relieve the Defendant of the obl.~ation to pay

stipulated petalcies.

3. A2.1 penalties owed the Plaintiff under this sect!on of

th~ Consent Ceder that have not been paid shall be payable

within thirty (30) dayB of the date the Defendant knows or should

have known of ~ts noricomplia.~ce with any provision of this

Cor.sent Order.

4. a. All stipulated penalties ~haJ.l be paid by cerci,fied

ohec)c or money order payable to the Illirtois EPA for deposit in

the EPTF and delivered to;

Illinois Environmental ProteOtiort Ager~cy
Fiscal S*~rvtces
10~1 t~orth Grand Avernie 2aat
P.O. Box 19276
Sprin~fieid, ~.lincis 62794-9276

b. The r~amear~dnumber of the case and the

Detendant~s FEI~ shall appear on the face of the check, A copy

of the check(s) and the transmittal letter shall be sent to~

Christopher Grant
~ss~.stant 1~.ttorneyGeneral
~nvironinental ~ureau
188 W. Randolph St~, 20~ Floor
Chicago, Illinois 601501

5. The stipulated penalties shall be enforceable by the

Pia~ntiff and shall be in addition to, and ~h~ll not preclude the

14
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use of, any other remedies or sanctions arising from the failure

to comply wit~h this Consent Order.

D. ~ eu Pe~~l¶~jss

1. Pursuar,t to SeCtion 42(gi of t~e’Act, 415 XLCS

~/12 (g) ~2Q02), interest shall accrue on any penalty amount owed

by the ~efendarit not paid within the time prescribed herein, at

the ~axim~im rate allowable under Section 1003(a) of the Illthoie

Income Tax Act, 35 IL~CS511003(a)(2002)

z~ tntereat on unpaid penalties shall begin to accrue from

the date the penalty is due and continue to accrue to the date

payment 15 received by the Illinois EPA.

3. Where partial payment is made on any penalty amount

that is due, such partial payment shall be first applied to any

interest on unpaid penalties then owing.

4. Al). interest on penalties owed the Plaintiff ~h~li be

paid by certified check or money order payable to the Illinois

~PA for deposit in the EPTF at the above-indicated aidrees. The

name, case number, and the Defendant’s FEfl~ ahall appear on the

face of the certified check or money order. A copy of the

certified check or money order and the transmittal letter shall

be sent to:

Christopher Grant
Ass~9tafltAttorney General
~nvj. ronrqental Bureau
188 W. Randolph St.,

20
th Floor

chicago, Illinois 6060].

15
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Notw~tb8taflding any other languagei~ this Consent Order to

~e• contrary, this Consent Order may be used against the

Defendant in any subsequent enforcement action or permit

proceeding as evidence of a past adjudication of violation of the

Act. and the ~oard Regulations promulgated thereunder, for

purposesof Sections 39(a) Ci) and/or 42(h) of the Ace, 415 iL~cs

5f39(a) Ci) and/or 5/42 (h) (2002)

1. ~ )~aiei~,re

1. For the purposes of this Consent Order, force majeure

an event arising solely beyond the control of the Defendant

which prevents the timely performance of any of the rquirements

of this Consent Order. For purposes of this consent order force

~ajeure shall include, but is not limited to events such as

floods, fires, tornadoes, other natural disasters, and labor

disputes beyond the reasonablecontrol of the Defendant.

2. when, ~n the opinion of the Defendant, a force majetu-e

ev-er~toccurs which causesor may cause a delay in the performance

of any of the requirert~nteof this Consent Order, the Defendant

shall orally notify the Plaintiff within 48 hours of the

occurrence. Written notice shall be given to the Plaintiff as

soon as practicable, but no later than ten (10) calendar days

after the claimed occurrence.
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3 Failure by the Defendant to comply with the notice

requirements of the preceding paragraph shall render this ~ecti~ri

voidable by the Plaintiff as to the specific event for which th~

Defendant has f~i2ed to comply with the nobi.Oe tequi.ret~enc. tf

voided, this section shall be of no effect as to the particular

event involved.

4. ~7ithin 3.0 calendar days of receipt of the force rnajeure

notice required under Section VIII~F.2, the Plaintiff shall

respond to th~ Defendant in writing regarding the ~efendant’s

claim of a delay or impediment to performance. tf the Plaintiff

agrees that the delay or impediment to performance has been or

will be caused by circumatantes beyond the control of the

Defendant, including any entity controlled by the Defendant, an~

that the Defendant could not have prevented the delay by the

exercise of due diligence, the pa~ties shall stipulate to an

extenSion of the required deadline(s) for all requirement(s)

affected by the delay, by a period equivalent to the delay

actually caused by such circumstances. Such stipulation may be

filed as a modification to this Consent Order pursuant to the

r~odificatiOfl procedures establiehed in this Con~erit Order. Th~

Defendant shall not be liable for stipulated penalties for the

period of any such delay.

S. if the £laintiff does not accept the Defendant’s claim

~ force z~iajeu:e event, the Defendant may submit the matter to

tl
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this Court with~..ri 20 calend~r days of receipt. cf ?ls~n:iff’~

determination for resolution to ~void payment ~f stii..ate~

penaltiea
1

~y filing a petiticn for determination of the issue.

Once the De~er2danthas submitted such a petition tc~the Court,

the Plaintiff shall have 20 calendar days to file its response to

said petition. TE thi~ Court determines that the delay or

impediment to performance ha~been o.r will be caused by

circutnSt~nCeS solely beyond the control of the Defendant,

incudirt~ any entity controlled by the Defendant, and that the

Deferidar.t could not have prevented the delay by the exerotse of

due dili;ence~ the Defendant ~ha1l be e~cuaed as to that event

(includthg any i p~siti~n of atipulated. penalt±es) for all

te.~uirements affected by the delay, ~or a period of ti~

equivalent to the delay or- such other period as may be determined

by this Court.

5. An increase in ~ost.~ .as~ociated ‘with ~u~plementing any

requirement of this Consent Order shall not, by itself, e~ccuse

the Defendant under the provisions of this section of this

Consent Order from a failure to comply with auch a requirement

~• ~ Re.~j~tio~

I. The dispute resolut~c’n procedure provided by this

section shall be available to resolve all disputes arising under

this Consent Order, except as otherwise provided in Section

vr~i~. regarding force ~ajeu~-e, a:~d except where the Defendant

d~3:Oo so so q~
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~inless the parties’ representatives agree to shorten or extend

this period-

4. In the event that the parties are unable to reach

agreenent during the informal negotiation period, the Plaintiff

shall provide the Defendant with a written summary of its

position regarding the dispute. The position advanced by the

Plaintiff shall be considered bi ing unless, within 20 calendar

days Ci the Defendant’s receipt of the written summaryof the

plaintiff’s position, the Defendant tiles a petition with this

Court seeking judicial resolution of the dispute. The Plaintiff

ahal~. respond to the petition by filirz~ the administrative record

of the dispute ~nd arty argument within 20 calendar days of such

filing.

5. The invocation of dispute resolution, in and of itself,

shall not excuse compliance with any requirement, obligation or

deadline contained herein, arid stipulated penalties may be

assessed for failure or noncompliance during the period of

dispute resolution.

S. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Consent

Order, this Court ehall make its decision based on the

administrative record and shall not draw any inferences nor

estabUsh any presumptions adverse to any party as a result of

invocation of this section or the parties’ inability to reach

agreement with respect to the disputed issue.

20
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-7. ~s part of the res~lut~on of any dispute, the parties,

by agro~mer1t. or by order of this Court. ray, in appropriate

circumstances, extend or modify the schedule for completion of

wor)~ under this Convent Order to account for the delay in the

work that occurred as a result of dispute resolution.

K. C~~esDo~dsn~e,, Rppor ~ Other ~ç~snts

~ny arid all correspondence, reports sAd any other documents

required under this Consent Order, except for payments pursuant

t~ Sections VIIIA. and C. of this Consent Order shall be

submitted as folIows~

~.s to ~he.~~P1aint~
Chris Kallis
~rwironnenta3. Protection SpecialistIllinois ~Z’~

9511 W. Harrison Street
Des Plaines, I111noi~ 60016

Charles rinarson
Assistant Counsel
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
1021 North Grand Avenue East
P.O. Box 19276
Springfield, I1li~ois 62794-9276

As to the. Defendant
Mayor
Village of Wauconda
100 South State Street
Wauconda, Illinois 61065

21
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I. &~bt of~ntry

In addition to any other authorit~’, the Illinois EPA, ~.ts

er~1riyeeaand represer.tatives~and the ~ttorney General, hex

ac~ents and representatives, shall have the right of entry into

arid upc~nthe Defendant’s POTWfacility, at all reasonable times

for t~ie purposes of carryin~3 out inspections. Zn conducting such

ir~spect~ns, the Illinois EPA, its enployees and representatives.

arid the P.ttorney c~erieral, h~s employees and representatives may

take photographs, samples, and collect information, as they d~rn

necessary.

~Y. ç~a.a~d~eaj~

The Defendant ~ha1l cease and desist from future violations

of the Act, and hoard Reguiations, including but not limited to

those sections of the Act and Soard Regulations that were the

subject matter of the Complaint as outlined in Section IZI.C. of

this Consent order.

- ~. B..*leue Iroci I4a~t3,i~y

Zn consideration of the Defenda~t’spayi~ent of any specified

costs, a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10.000.C0) penalty, and upon the

completion of all activities required hereunder, the Plaintiff

releases, waives and discharges the Defendant from any further

liability or penalties for violations of the Act and Board

Regulations that were the subject matter of the Complaint here.~.n.

The reJ.ea~e set forth above does not extend to any matters other

22
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than those ecpressly specified in Plaintiff’s Complaint filed on

August 17, 2004. The Plaintiff reserves, and this Consent Order

j~ without pre~udice to, all rights of the State of Illinois

against the Defendant with respect to all other matters,

ixlcludin9 but not limited to, the following:

a. criminal liability1

b. liability for future violation of state, federal,

local, and common laws and/or regulations;

c. liability for r.atural resourcesdamage arising out of

the alleged violations; and

~, liability or claims based on the Defendant’s failure to

satisfy the requirements of this Consent Order.

Nothing in this Consent Order is intended as a waiver,

discharge, release, or covenant not to sue for any claim or cause

o~ action, administrative or judicial, civil or criminal, paet or

future, in law or in equity. which th~ State of tllinois or the

Illinois EPA may have against any person, as defined by Sect,~on

3315 of the Act, 415 IL,CS 5/3.315 (2002), or entity other than

the Defendant.

L. Re~sntion ~f ~Zuri~ictioq

This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for the

purposes of interpretIng and enforcing the terms and conditions

of this Consent Order, except that th~parties may, by mutual

written consent, extend any compliance dates or modify the terms

23
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of thig Consent Order without leave o~ cc~rt. Any sk~ch agreed

modification sb~il he ~ writing~ si.gned by authorized

reprezttati”~eS of each party, ti1ed~ with the court and

incorporated into this Consent. Order by reference.

M. ~ ~

i. upon the entry of this Consent Order, any party hereto,

upon motion, t~y reinstate these proceedings solely for the

t~ur~ose of enforcing the terms and conditions o~ this Consent

Order. This Consent Order is a binding and enforceable order of

this Court and may be enforced ~s such through any and all

available rneaflg.

2. Defendant agrees th~tt notice of an~ ~ubse~uerit

proceeding to enforce this Consent Order may be madø by r~ail and

waives any requirement o~service of process.

24
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WHEREFORE, the partie& by their representatives, enter into

this Consent Order and su~r~itit to this Court that it may be

approved and entered;

FOR ?~*PWiNT~YP:

PEOPL)~OF T~ESTATE OF IL~L4NOIS
•ex rel. LISA MADIGAN.
.~.ttorney~anera1 of the
State otIlii~is

~ J. D1JI~N, Chief
Ev&ror.n~ental Entorcee~eat/
A.sbe Litigation D.i sion

Assistant Attorney general

DATE: _____
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE NINETEENTH ~ItJDICIAL CIRCUIT
LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

CHANCERYDIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
ex .rel. JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney
General of the State of ) -

Plaintiff, ) ‘ ~ I

vs. )
) ‘4

VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA,an
Illinois municipal

Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR. INJUNCTION .AND OTHER RELIEF

NOWCOMESthe Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ex

rel. JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, and

complains of Defendant, VILLAGE OF WAUCONDA,.as follows:

COUNT I

WATER POLLUTION

1. This Count is brought pursuant to Section 42(d) and (e)

of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS

5/42 (d) and (e) (1996), on behalf of the People of the State of

Illinois, ex rel. JAMES E. RYAN, Attorney General of the State of

Illinois, on his own motion and at the request of the Illinois

Environmental Protection Agency, and is an action to restrain

ongoing violations of the Act and for civil penalties.

2. The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“Illinois

EPA”) is an administrativ& agency established in the executive

branch of the State government by Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4

(1996), and charged, inter alia, with the duty of enforcing the Act.

1



The Illinois EPA is further charged with the duty to administer and

abate violations of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System (“NPDES”) permit program under the Federal Clean Water Act

(“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. Sec. 1342(b) (7).

3. The Village of Wauconda (“Wauconda”) is an Illinois

municipal corporation located in Lake County, Illinois.

4; Wauconda owns and operates the Wauconda Wastewater

Treatment Plant (“WWWTP”) located at 302 Slocum Lake Road, Wauconda,

Lake County, Illinois. The legal description of the WWWTPis the

Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 44N, Range 09E, Lake

County, Illinois.

5. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the WWWTP

provides preliminary, primary, secondary and tertiary treatment, and

consists of a raw sewage pumping station, aerated grit tank,

comminutor, primary clarifiers, primary effluent pumping station,

bio packed towers, solids contact tank, secondary clarifiers, sand

filters, chlorine contact tank, aerobic digesters and sluge pumps.

6. The WWWTPdischarges to an unnamed tributary to the.Fox

River, a water of the State of Illinois as that term is defined in

Section 3.56 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.56 (1996) .

Section 3.56

“WATERS” means all accumulations of water, surface and
underground, natural, and artificial, public and private,
or parts thereof,which are wholly or partially within,
flow through, or border upon this State.

7. Section 3.55 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.55 (.1996), defines

water pollution as follows:

2



Section 3.55

“WATER POLLUTION” is such alteration of the physical,
thermal, chemical, biological or radioactive properties
of any waters of the State, or such discharge of any
contaminant into any waters of the State, as will or is
likely to create a nuisance or render such waters harmful
or detrimental or injurious to public health, safety or
welfare, or to domestic, commercial, industrial,
agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate uses, or
to livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other aquatic
life.

8. Section 3.06 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.06 (1996), defines

a contaminant as “any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or

any form of energy,. from whatever source;”

9. Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (1996),

provides, in pertinent part as follows:

No person shall:

a. Cause or threaten or allow the discharge of any
contaminants into the environment in any State so as
to cause or tend to cause water pollution in
Illinois, either alone or in combination with matter
from other sources, or so as to violate regulations
or standards adopted by the Pollution Control Board
under this Act.

10. On May 20, 1996, and February 20, and 21, 1997, Wauconda

allowed untreated raw sewage to be pumped from six different

locations totaling approximately 1,530,390 gallons into Bangs Lake

Creek, a water of the State of Illinois, so as to cause or tend to

cause water pollution in Illinois, in violation of the Act.

11. The untreated raw sewage is a contaminant as that term is

defined in Section 3.06 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.06(1996).

12. Defendant, by its actions alleged herein, has violated

Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (1996).

13. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.
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Plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of

preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this Court grant a preliminary injunction and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant

Wauconda:

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Section 12(a) of the Act;

2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Section cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring the WWWTPinto compliance with the Act;

3. Assessing a civil, penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars

($50,000.00) against Wauconda for each and every violation of

Section 12(a) of the Act, plus an additional Ten Thousand Dollars

($10,000.00) per day for each day the violation of Section 12(a)

continues;

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as this Court deems just and

equitable.

,-r~rmvn1 r r

dUJ.~J. .LJ

VIOLATION OF GENERALEFFLUENT ST~DARDS

1-10. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference

4



herein, paragraphs 1 through 10 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through

10 of this Count II.

11. Section 304.120(c) of the Illinois Pollution Control

Board (“Board”) Water Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

304.120(c), titled, Deoxygenating Wastes, provides as follows:

Except as provided in Section 306.103, all effluents
containing deoxygenating wastes shall meet the
following standards:

c) No effluent whose dilution ratio is less than
five to one shall exceed 10 mg/i of BOD5 or 12
mg/l of suspended solids,

12. In February 1997, Wauconda caused or allowed 28.4

milligrams per liter (“mg/l”) of total suspended solids (“TSS”) to

be discharged into Bangs Lake Creek, a water of the State of

Illinois, in violation of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.120(c).

13. Defendant, by its’ actions alleged herein, has violated

Section 12(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a) (1996), and 35 Ill. Adm.

Code 304.120(c)

14. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.

Plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statutes and regulations’ will continue

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of

preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this Court grant a preliminary injunction and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant

Wauconda: ‘

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Section 12(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.120(c);
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2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Sections cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring the WWWTPinto compliance with the Act and

the Board Water Pollution Regulations;

3. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars

($50,000.00) against Wauconda for each and every violation of

Section 12(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.120(c), plus an

additional Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per day f or each day

the violation of Section 12(a) and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.120(c)

continues;

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as this Court deems just and

equitable.

COUNT III

VIOLATION OF NPDES PERNIT EFFLUENT LIMITS

1-10. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference

herein, paragraphs 1 through 10 of Count I as paragraphs 1 through

10 of this Count III.

11. Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (1996),

provides as follows:

No person shall:

f. Cause, threaten or allow the discharge of any
contaminant into the waters of the State, as defined
herein, including but not limited to, waters to any
sewage works, or into any well or from any point
source within the State, without an NPDES permit for

6



point source discharges issued by the Agency under
Section 39(b) of this Act, or in violation of any
term or condition imposed by such permit, or in
violation if any NPDES permit filing requirement
established under Section 39 (b), or in violation of
any regulations adopted by the Board or of any Order
adopted by the Board with respect to the NPDES
program.

12. Section 309.102(a) of the Board Water Pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102 (a), titled, NPDES Permit

~guired, provides as follows:

a. Except as in compliance with the provisions of the
Act, Board regulations, and the CWA, and the
provisions and conditions of the NPDES permit issued
to the discharger, the discharge of any contaminant
or pollutant by any person into the waters of the
State from a point source or into a well shall be
unlawful.

13. Section 304.141(a) of the Board Water Pollution

Regulation, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.141(a), titled, NPDES Effluent

~~ndards, provides as follows:

a. No person to whom an NPDES permit has been issued
may discharge’ any contaminant in his effluent in
excess of the standards and limitations for that
contaminant which are set forth in his permit.

14. Section 304.120(c) of the Board Water Pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.120(c), titled, Deoxygenating

Wastes, provides as follows:

Except as provided in Section 306.103, all effluents
containing deoxygentating wastes shall meet the following
standards:

No effluent whose dilution ration is less than five to
one shall exceed 10 mg/i of BOD5 or 12 mg/i of suspended
solids...

15. The Illinois EPA issued to Defendant NPDES Permit No.

1L0020109 on June 7, 1995, with an expiration date of May 31, 2000.

16. Defendants’ NPDES Permit No. 1L0020478 contains effluent

7



limits for, among other things, TSS and total residual chlorine.

17. The NPDES effluent limit for TSS is 12 mg/i and 0.05 mg/i

for residual chlorine.

18. Wauconda exceeded its NPDES permit limits for TSS and

chlorine residual by discharging 28.4 mg/i of TSS on February 20,

1997, and 0.68 mg/l and 0.69 mg/i of residual chlorine on both

February 20 and 21, 1997.

19. Defendant, by its actions alleged herein, has violated

Section 12(a) and (f) of.the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(a)and(f) (1996), and

Sections 309.102(a), 304.141(a) and 304.120(c) of 35 Ill. Adm. Code

309.902(a), 304.141(a), and 304.120(c).

20. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.

Plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue

unless and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of

preliminary and, after a trial, a permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this Court grant a preliminary injunction, and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant

Wauconda:

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Section 12(a) and (f) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adtn. Code 309.102 (a),

304.141(a) and 304.120(c);

2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Sections cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring ~he WWWTPinto compliance with the Act and

the Board Water Pollution Regulations;
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3. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars

($50,000.00) against Wauconda for each and every violation of

Section 12(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 304.l4l(a)and

304.120(c), plus an additional Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per

day for each day the violations of Section 12(a) and 35 Ill. 24dm.

Code 304.141(a), and 304.l20(c)continue; and $10,000.00 (Ten

Thousand Dollars) per day for each day of violation of Section 12(f)

of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102 (a);

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section 42

(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as this Court deems just and

equitable.

COUNT IV

VIOLATION OF NPDES PERMIT REPORTING REOUIREMENTS

1-8. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein,

paragraphs 1 through 8 of Count I and paragraph 11 of Count III as

paragraphs 1 through 9 of this Count IV.

10. Section 305.102(a) and (b) of the Board Water Pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 305.102(a)and(b), titled, Report~g

Reauirements, provides as follows:

a) Every person within this’State operating a
pretreatment works, treatment works, or wastewater
source shall submit operating reports to the Agency
at a frequency to be determined by the Agency.
“Agency” means the Illinois Environmental Protection
Agency. . Such reports shall contain information
regarding the quantity of influent and of effluent
discharged, or wastes bypassed and of combined sewer
overflows; the concentrations of those physical,
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chemical, bacteriological and radiological
parameters which shall be specified by the Agency;
information concerning the biological impact of the
discharge as specified by the Agency, pursuant to
Section 39 of the Act; and any additional
information the Agency may reasonably require.

b) Every holder of an NPDES (National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System) permit is required to
comply with the monitoring, sampling, recording and
reporting requirements set forth in the permit and
this Chapter.

11. Defendant did not provide representative flow monitoring,

as required by its NPDES Permit.

12. By not providing representative flow monitoring, as

required by its NPDES permit, Wauconda violated 35 Iii. 24dm. Code

305.102(a) and (b) and thereby violated Section 12(f) of the Act,

415 ILCS 5/12 (f) (1996)

13. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.

Plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statues and regulations will continue unless

and until this Court grants equitable relief in t’he form of

preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this court grant preliminary injunction, and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant

Wauconda:

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Section 12(f) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 305.102(a)and(b);

2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Sections cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring the WWWTPinto compliance with the Act and

10



the Board Water Pollution Regulations;

3. Assessing a civil penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars

($10,000.00) per day against Wauconda for each and every violation

of Section 12(f) of the Act and 35 Ill. 24dm. Code 305.l02(a)and(b);

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42 (f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as t’his Court deems just and

equitable.

COUNT V

VIOLATIOI~T OF PERFORMANCECRITERIA

1-9. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein,

paragraphs 1 through 9 of Count Iv as paragraphs 1 though 9 of this

Count V.

10. Section 306.303 of the Board Water Pollution Regulations

35 Ill. Adm. Code 306.303,, titled, Excess Infiltration, provides as

follows:

Excess infiltration into sewers shall be eliminated, and
the maximum practicable flow be conveyed to treatment
facilities.

11. Section 306.304 of the Board Water Pollution Regulations,

35 Ill. 24dm. Code 306.304, titled, Overflows, provides as follows:

Overflows from sanitary sewers are expressly prohibited.

12. Section 306.305(b) of the Board Water pollution

Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 306.305(b), titled, Treatment of

overflows and Bypasses,..provide as follows:

All combined sewer overflows and treatment plant bypasses
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shall be given sufficient treatment to prevent pollution,
or the violation of applicable water quality standards
unless an exception has been granted by the Board
pursuant to Subpart D.

Sufficient treatment shall consist of the following:

b) Additional flows, as determined by the Agency but
not less than ten times the average dry weather flow
for the design year, shall receive a minimum of
primary treatment and disinfection with adequate
retention time.

13. On February 20 and 21, 1997, Wauconda allowed excessive

inflow/infiltration into its collection system leading to sewer

overflow in violation of 35 Ill. Adm. Code 306.303.

14. On February 20 and 21, 1997, Wauconda allowed sewer

overflows to occur during wet weather periods that did not receive

primary treatment and disinfection prior to discharge to the

environment.

15. By allowing excessive inflow/infiltration and overflows

and by failing to give primary treatment and disinfection prior to

discharge, Wauconda violated Sections 306.303, 306.304, and

306.305(b) of 35 Ill. Adm. Code, and thereby violated Section 12(f)

of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12 (f) (1996) .

16. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.

plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statutes and regulations will continue

unless and this Court grants equitable relief in the form of

preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this Court grant a preliminary injunction, and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant



Wauconda:

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Sections 306.303, 306.304, and 306.305(b) of 35 Ill. 24dm. Code and

Section 12(f) of the Act;

2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Sections cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring the WWWTP into compliance with the Act and

the Board Water Pollution Regulations;

3. Assessing against Wauconda a civil penalty of Ten

Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per day for each day of violation of

Section 12(f) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 306.303, 306.304, and

306.305(b);

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section

42 (f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42 (f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as this Court deems just and

equitable.

COUNT VI

VIOLATION OF NPDES PERMIT CONDITIONS

1-9. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein,

paragraphs 1 through 9 of Count V as paragraphs 1 through 9 of this

Count VI.

10. Section 309.146(a) (1-4)of the Board Water Pollution

Regulations, 35 Iii. 24dm. Code 309.146 (a) (1-4) titled, Authority to

Establish Recording. Reporting. Monitoring and Sampling Require-

ments, provides as follows:

13



a) The Agency shall require every holder of an NPDES
Permit, as a condition of the NPDES Permit issued to
the holder, to:

1) Establish, maintain and retain records;

2) Make reports;

3) Install, calibrate, use and maintain monitoring
equipment or methods (including where
appropriate biological monitoring methods);

4) Take samples of effluents (in accordance with
such methods, at such locations, at such
intervals, and in such a manner as may be
prescribed).

11. By failing to provide representative flow monitoring, as

required by its NPDES Permit, Wauconda violated 35 Ill. 24dm. Code

309.146 (a) (3)

12. By failing to take samples as per the requirements of its

NPDES Permit regarding frequency, Wauconda violated 35 Ill. Adm.

Code 309.146 (a) (4)

13. By failing to submit its sludge analyses and its semi-

annual sludge management report as required by its NPDES Permit,

Wauconda violated 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.146 (a) (2)

14. By failing to submit a completed industrial survey to the

Illinois EPA as required by its NPDES Permit, Wauconda violated. 35

Ill. 24dm. Code 309. 146(a) (1) and (2).

15, Violations of 35 Iii. Adm~Code 309.146(a) (1-4) are also

violations of Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (1996).

16. Defendant by its action alleged herein has violated

Section 12(f)of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (1996), and 35 Ill. 24dm.

Code 309.146 (a) (1-4).

17. Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.
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Plaintiff will be irreparably injured and violations of the

pertinent environmental statues and regulations will continue unless

and until this Court grants equitable relief in the form of

preliminary and, after a trial, permanent injunctive relief.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, prays

that this Court grant a preliminary injunction, and after a trial, a

permanent injunction in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant

Wauconda:

1. Finding that Wauconda has caused or allowed violations of

Section 12(f) of the Act and 35 Ill. 24dm. Code 309.l46(a)(1-4);

2. Enjoining Defendant from further violations of the

Sections cited above, by ordering Defendant to take whatever steps

are necessary to bring the WWWTPinto compliance with the Act and

Board Water Pollution Regulations;

3. Assessing against Wauconda a civil penalty of Ten

Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) per day for each day of violation of

Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.146(a) (1-4);

4. Taxing all costs in this action, pursuant to Section

42(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/42(f) (1996), including reasonable

attorneys fees, and the reasonable cost of expert witnesses and

consultants, against the Defendant; and

5. Granting such other relief as this Court deems just and

equitable.
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As si~t ant
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